



## Code Assurance Solution

# CLARISOFT

# **User Manual**

P/N 462458-01 Revision AA, December 2013 Copyright December 2013, Videojet Technologies Inc. (herein referred to as Videojet). All rights reserved.

This document is the property of Videojet Technologies Inc. and contains confidential and proprietary information owned by Videojet. Any unauthorized copying, use or disclosure of it without the prior written permission of Videojet is strictly prohibited. CLARiTY<sup>®</sup>, CLARiSOFT<sup>®</sup> and CLARiNET<sup>®</sup> are registered trademarks.

#### Videojet Technologies Inc.

1500 Mittel Boulevard Wood Dale, IL 60191-1073 USA www.videojet.com Phone:1-800-843-3610Fax:1-800-582-1343Int'l Fax:630-616-3629

Offices - USA: Atlanta, Chicago Int'l: Canada, France, Germany, Ireland, Japan, Spain, Singapore, The Netherlands, and The United Kingdom Distributors Worldwide

## **Table Of Contents**

#### Chapter 1 - Introduction

CLARiSUITE	1-1
About the User Manual	1-1
Related Publications	1-2
Terms and Abbreviations	1-2

#### Chapter 2 - Installing and Licensing CLARiSOFT

Applications Installed During Installation Process 2-1
CLARiSOFT 2-1
CLARiSOFT Print Manager 2-1
CLARiSOFT Database Manager 2-2
Installing CLARiSOFT 2-2
Preparing for installation 2-2
Commencing Installation 2-4
Post Installation Actions 2-7
Licensing CLARiSOFT 2-9

#### Chapter 3 - User Interface Elements

CLARiSOFT Main Screen 3-1
Toolbars
CLARiSOFT Toolbar 3-2
Format Viewer Toolbar 3-5
Database Viewer Toolbar 3-6
CLARiSOFT Toolbox 3-6
Field Types 3-7
Menu Bar 3-8
Status Bar 3-11

#### Chapter 4 - Basic Image Creation

Basic Image Containing Use-By Date	4-1
Saving the Image File to Disk	4-9
Basic Image for Secondary Packaging	4-10
Basic Image with Counter Field	4-17

#### Chapter 5 - Printing in CLARiSOFT

Offline Printing	5-1
Download a Job File using USB Memory Stick	5-2
Online Printing	5-4

Configuring Printer Communications	5-5
Print Preview	5-6
Printing the Image	5-9

#### Chapter 6 - Date Calculations

User Entered Date	 
Chained Dates	 

#### Chapter 7 - CLARiSOFT Database

Overview
CLARiSOFT Database Structure
Linking fields to the CLARiSOFT Database
Designing the Image Template7-3
Linking the CIFF to Jobs in the Database
Open Database Connectivity (ODBC)
Linking CLARiSOFT to an external ODBC database

#### Chapter 8 - Advanced Message Design

#### Chapter 9 - CLARiSOFT Print Manager

Starting CLARiSOFT Print Manager	9-1
CLARiSOFT Print Manager Tool Bar	9-1
Configuring Print Manager	9-3
Printing a Job using Print Manager and CIFF files	9-3
Printing a Job Linked to a Database	9 <b>-</b> 11

#### Chapter 10 - CLARiSOFT Database Manager

Opening the CLARiSOFT Database Manager	. 10-1
CLARiSOFT Database Manager Toolbar	. 10-2
Managing the Sample Database	. 10-3
Creating a Database	10-11
CLARiSOFT Database Wizard	10-11

## Introduction

Thank You for purchasing CLARiSOFT.

CLARiSOFT is Videojet Technology's message design software. It is used to create the image to be sent to Videojet's industrial product coding and marking devices for printing. It can either be used in isolation or as part of a coder and message network coordinated by CLARINET. Together, CLARISOFT and CLARINET make up the core of Videojet's CLARISUITE Code Assurance Solution.

## **CLARISUITE**

CLARISUITE offers powerful, expandable and flexible code assurance solutions ranging from simple date codes to serialised shipping container codes. It is a fully integrated code assurance solution linking on-product coding to a centralized message database.

### About the User Manual

This user Manual is a comprehensive guide for the regular users of CLARiSOFT. It describes all functions and features of the software as used in isolation or as part of a coder and message network coordinated by CLARINET.

The manual can be used both as a reference guide for the functions found on the main screen and dialog boxes of the software as well as a step by step instruction manual describing how to create and download messages to coders.

**Note:** The CLARiTY Coder User Interface examples included in this document are not the same for all Coders. The version used for the examples included may be different in appearance and operation. In addition, not all functions are available in all coders. Please consult the coder manual for details.

### **Related Publications**

A detailed on-line help is available with CLARiSOFT. Refer to the online help for further details on the topics covered in this user manual.

The user manual supplied with CLARiNET contains all required information to build a coder network and manage message transfer and synchronisation across coders in the network.

## **Terms and Abbreviations**

Term	Description
Image, Image File	An Image is a collection of Fields that describes how information is to be printed on a coder. CLARiSOFT saves Images in a generic file format with the CIFF extension. It is these Image files that are selected by CLARiNET when selecting the Next Job for a given coder or group of coders.
Field	A distinct item on an Image is called a Field. Fields have their own individual properties. Each Field can be positioned relative to other fields on the Image. Each field is of a specific type, e.g. Text Fields, Date Fields etc. and these types define the base functionality of the field. The properties of the field depend upon its type. A list of fields and their uses are listed later in this document.
Field Properties	The information, specific to a particular field that sets the exact behaviour of that field. The field properties depend upon the field type. Some field properties are shared between differing field types. For example, all field types share General Properties and all text-based fields share Font Properties.
Calculated Date	Package coding applications frequently use sell-by and use-by dates that are calculated by adding a number of days to the current date. CLARISOFT's <i>Calculated Dates</i> Field provide this feature.
Coder	<ul> <li>This is the generic term CLARiSOFT uses to refer to any industrial in-line, in-plant package coding or labelling machine. Typical types of coder encountered in the packaging environment are:</li> <li>Continuous Inkjet Printers (CIJ)</li> <li>Large Character Inkjet Printers (LCM)</li> <li>Thermal Transfer Overprinters (TTO)</li> <li>Print and Apply labelling machines</li> <li>Laser marking devices</li> <li>Thermal Ink Jet (TIJ)</li> </ul>
CIFF	Videojet's Coder Independent File Format. This file format is used to store Image files.

<i>Table 1-1:</i>	CLARiSOFT	Terms and	Abbreviations
-------------------	-----------	-----------	---------------

## Installing and Licensing CLARiSOFT

This chapter explains how to install and license your copy of CLARiSOFT. CLARiSOFT must be licensed to operate correctly – if unlicensed, it runs in demonstration mode whereby image files cannot be saved and will be printed with a watermark stating 'Demonstration Mode'. Random characters are also replaced in text fields.

## **Applications Installed During Installation Process**

The CLARiSOFT installation process installs three key applications: CLARiSOFT, CLARiSOFT Print Manager and CLARiSOFT Database Manager. These applications are described in detail throughout this document and in summary below.

#### CLARiSOFT

CLARiSOFT is the application used to create the image files printed by coders.

#### **CLARiSOFT Print Manager**

CLARiSOFT standard functionality allows image files to be downloaded to a coder across a network. However, it is not always desirable to allow all users to have access to CLARiSOFT simply to print an image; this increases the chance of accidental changes to the image structure. With this in mind, Videojet have developed CLARiSOFT Print Manager – a standalone application that enables an operator to select an existing image file and download it to a coder without the ability to change the message structure or content.

#### CLARiSOFT Database Manager

CLARiSOFT is supplied with a database to store dynamic data that can be used in image files when printing; it can be more efficient and safer to add or change data in this database rather than change the contents of image files using CLARiSOFT. Data is dynamically inserted into image files from the database when an image file is downloaded to a coder. CLARiSOFT Database Manager is a tool to create and administer the CLARiSOFT database. CLARiSOFT Database Manager is not used when an ODBC data source is in use (see Chapter 7, "CLARiSOFT Database").

### Installing CLARiSOFT

Before commencing the installation, ensure that you have sufficient security access rights to install the software on the required PC.

Note: CLARiSOFT installs and runs on a Windows operating system only.

CLARiSOFT and CLARiNET should always be upgraded together, i.e. the version number of both programs should always be the same. Prior to installing CLARiSOFT, ensure that the hardware licence key ('dongle') is removed from the PC.

#### Preparing for installation

It is necessary to first uninstall any previous installation of CLARiSOFT from the PC. If no previous installation of CLARiSOFT exists, then skip to the section "Commencing Installation" on page 2-4.

#### License File Backup

It is advisable to back up the CLARiSOFT license file prior to removing the software. This ensures that, in the event of any mistakes or errors, your license file can be restored to avoid re-licensing the new installation.

The license file can be found in a sub-folder of the CLARiSOFT program location which is user definable during installation. The default location differs depending on installation within a 32bit or 64bit Windows environment.

- 32bit Operating Systems C:\Program Files\CLARICOM
- 64bit Operating Systems C:\Program Files (x86)\CLARICOM

Once this installation folder has been located, navigate to the sub folder \data and make a copy of the file 'CLARiSOFT License.xml' to an alternative location. If this file is accidently deleted during installation (see "Removing the existing installation" on page 2-3) the new license file, post installation, can be overwritten with the backup to restore existing license information.

#### Removing the existing installation

*Note:* Before beginning the uninstall process, make sure that all hardware keys (Dongles) are removed from the PC.

1 Open *Control Panel*. Navigate to the list of installed programs and locate CLARISOFT. Click on the entry to select it and click on the option *uninstall*. After a few moments the following dialog box appears.

CLARiSOFT - InstallShield Wizard	×
Do you want to completely remove t	the selected application and all of its features?
	Yes <u>N</u> o

Figure 2-1: InstallShield Wizard

2 Click *Yes* and the following dialog box appears asking if the licensing information of the currently installed version is to be deleted. Typically, when upgrading, the license file should not be deleted, so click *No*. Clicking *Yes* will require the software to be re-licensed if the license file is not backed up (see "License File Backup" on page 2-2).



Figure 2-2: Confirmation Window

The uninstall process runs and removes CLARiSOFT from the PC. Once completed, the following screen is displayed.



Figure 2-3: Finish Uninstall

Click *Finish* to close this window and complete the CLARiSOFT uninstall process. It is recommended that the PC is rebooted after uninstalling previous versions.

#### **Commencing Installation**

1 CLARISOFT is installed by running a software application entitled 'CSxxxxSPy.exe' where 'xxxx' refers to the major version of CLARISOFT being installed and 'y' the Service Pack (SP) release. Locate this file (typically shipped by Videojet on a USB memory stick). Right click on it and select *Run as Administrator* to begin the setup process.

- 2 The User Account Control window opens.
- 3 Click Yes. Following screen is displayed.



Figure 2-4: Commence Install

4 Click *Next* to continue setup and be presented with the following screen.



Figure 2-5: Choose Destination Location

If the default CLARiSOFT installation location is to be changed, click on *Browse*... and select the desired folder. Click *Next* > to continue. It is recommended that the default installation locations are used. Always install on the local hard disk (C:), not a network location or secondary hard disk.

**5** On the following screen, enter the CLARiSOFT installation key that is supplied with the installation media.



Figure 2-6: Enter License Key

If this is a new installation, or a reinstallation and the license file was not retained, the fields will be blank and the key must be entered. If this is a reinstallation and the license file was retained then the fields will contain the previous installation key. Click *Next* >.

The License Agreement window appears (Figure 2-7).



Figure 2-7: Accept License Agreement

6 Review the license agreement and either click *I accept the terms of the license agreement* followed by *Next* > to continue with the installation or click *Cancel* to abort the installation.

7 Once Next > is clicked, CLARiSOFT is installed on the PC. After installation, the following screen appears informing of success and allowing the ability to view the *readme* file and / or launch CLARiSOFT once *Finish* is clicked.



Figure 2-8: Finish Installation

Click Finish to complete the CLARiSOFT setup.

#### **Post Installation Actions**

Under Windows 7 and Windows Server, it is recommended that CLARiSOFT is explicitly set to run under the user account 'administrator' to ensure all functions within the application run correctly regardless of the user access rights.

Note: These steps are not required for Windows XP.

Right click on the CLARiSOFT entry within the start menu. From the pop-up menu that is displayed, click on *Properties*. The *CLARiSOFT Properties* dialog box appears (Figure 2-9).

CLARISOFT Properties		
General Short	tcut Compatibility Security Details	
S	CLARISOFT	
Type of file:	Shortcut (Jnk)	
Description:	CLARISOFT	
Location:	C:\ProgramData\Microsoft\Windows\Start Menu\Pr	
Size:	2.01 KB (2,064 bytes)	
Size on disk:	4.00 KB (4.096 bytes)	
Created:	13 August 2013, 21:01:15	
Modified:	13 August 2013, 21:01:15	
Accessed:	13 August 2013, 21:01:15	
Attributes:	Read-only Hidden Advanced	
	OK Cancel Apply	

Figure 2-9: CLARiSOFT Properties

Click on the *Compatibility* tab and then select the check box *Run this program as an administrator*.

CLARISOFT Properties		
General Shortcut Compatibility Security Details		
If you have problems with this program and it worked correctly on an earlier version of Windows, select the compatibility mode that matches that earlier version.		
Compatibility mode		
Run this program in compatibility mode for:		
Windows XP (Service Pack 3) -		
Settings		
Run in 256 colors		
Run in 640 x 480 screen resolution		
Disable visual themes		
Disable desktop composition		
Disable display scaling on high DPI settings		
Privilege Level		
Run this program as an administrator		
Thange settings for all users		
OK Cancel Apply		

Figure 2-10: Compatibility

Click OK to save the changes and close the dialog box.

Repeat these steps for CLARiSOFT Database Manager and CLARiSOFT Print manager that are both installed at the same time as CLARiSOFT.

#### Licensing CLARiSOFT

CLARiSOFT requires a license to be able to function fully.

#### Activation via Hardware License Key (Dongle)

CLARiSOFT is delivered with a USB-based dongle license key. The dongle must be connected to a computer running CLARiSOFT to stop CLARiSOFT running in demonstration mode.

Follow the procedure below to activate CLARiSUITE using a hardware key.

- 1 Open CLARiSOFT (navigate to *Start > Programs > CLARiCOM > CLARiSOFT*).
- **2** CLARiSOFT displays the message *Unactivated* or *Demonstration Mode* at the top left hand corner on the title bar.
- 3 Insert the USB Hardware key (Dongle) into an unused USB port of the computer. The system will install drivers automatically. Once the installation is complete, the message *Unactivated* or *Demonstration Mode* disappears. The software is now ready to use.

*Note:* If the message does not disappear, restart the CLARiSOFT application.

*Note:* It is recommended that the CLARiSUITE license files are saved to an alternative location. This will safeguard against losing the file in case of a PC failure, PC reimage or accidental deletion during an upgrade. See the section "License File Backup" on page 2-2 for instructions on how to perform this.

## **User Interface Elements**

## **CLARiSOFT Main Screen**



Figure 3-1: CLARiSOFT Main Screen

#### Toolbars

CLARiSOFT contains three toolbars enabling quick access to the most useful functions required during message design.

Toolbars can be individually displayed or hidden through the *View* menu.

#### **CLARiSOFT Toolbar**

The CLARiSOFT Toolbar contains key functions for user access, file management and for editing and positioning of objects on the image design area.

Symbol	Description
	User level (User Login): If login security is enabled this function enables the user to create / manage user security levels and permissions (if user has sufficient authorisation).
	New Image File (ciff): Create a new image file.
2	Open Image File (ciff): Open an existing image file.
	Save Image File (ciff): Save current image file.
<u>à</u>	Print Preview: Allows the user to preview the image before printing / downloading.
	Sub Image Preview: If using sub-images, this option allows the user to preview and compare up to four sub-images.
4	Print: Allows the user to print the image files to coder, windows printer or a file.
	Download: Allows the user to download the image files to coder, windows printer or a file.
$\times$	Delete: Remove the selected item(s) from the image design area.

Table 3-1: CLARiSOFT Toolbar

Symbol	Description
×	Cut: Remove the selected item(s) from the image design area and place them onto the clipboard.
	Copy: Copy the selected item(s) on the image design area and place them onto the clipboard.
	Paste: Paste the contents of the clipboard onto the image design area (where applicable).
5	Undo: Undo the last action.
0	Repeat: Repeat the last action.
2	Horizontal Center: Horizontal Center alignment of the selected fields.
-0[]-	Vertical Center: Vertical Center alignment of the selected fields.
104	Left Align: Left Edge alignment of the selected fields.
10t	Right Align: Right Edge alignment of the selected fields.
TI.	Top Align: Top Edge alignment of the selected fields.
<u>101</u>	Bottom Align: Bottom Edge alignment of the selected fields.
]⊷[	Horizontal Spacing: Allows to set the Horizontal Spacing between the selected fields.

Table 3-1: CLARiSOFT Toolbar (Continued)

Symbol	Description
]⊷[	Vertical Spacing: Allows to set the Vertical Spacing between the selected fields.
<b>P</b>	Bring to Front: Bring the selected field to the Front.
	Send to Back: Send the selected field to the Back.
12	Rotate Left: Rotate the selected field to the left.
	Rotate Right: Rotate the selected field to the right.
-	Select Language: Displays a list of supported languages allowing the user to switch the CLARiSOFT application to another language.
	About: Displays the version of the software in use.
<b>3</b>	Help Contents: Displays the contents page of the CLARiSOFT on-line help system.

Table 3-1: CLARiSOFT Toolbar (Continued)

#### Format Viewer Toolbar

The format viewer toolbar allows the user to change the image design area zoom level, the currently selected target coder and change the target coder.



Figure 3-2: Format Viewer Toolbar

Element	Description
Zoom Controls	Enables the user to progressively zoom in to, or out of, the image design area using the two magnifying glass symbols or zoom to a specific percentage by selecting an option from the drop down list.
Target Coder	Description of target coder for which this image is being created.
Selected Template	Depending on the target coder, CLARiSOFT needs to know certain format / template information. For example, the number of drops high a CIJ printed message will be or with a TIJ, how many heads will be used. These selections define how CLARiSOFT formats the image design area. The selected format / template is displayed in this field.
Select Coder	Clicking on this button enables the user to change the target coder. CLARiSOFT will retain the objects on the image design area (where applicable – depending on coder) and move them to fit if the image size is changed.

Table 3-2: Format Viewer Toolbar

#### **Database Viewer Toolbar**

It is possible to link fields in an image file to external data (see Chapter 7, "CLARiSOFT Database" for more information). When this option is being used, the 'Database Viewer' toolbar enables data from the database to be viewed in the associated, linked field in the image design area.



Figure 3-3: Database Viewer Toolbar

Element	Description
Job Selector	Clicking on the direction indicators enables the user to scroll backwards and forwards through the matching jobs (those that use the image being edited in CLARiSOFT) in the external database. Clicking on the button situated between the direction indicators will drop down a list of all matching Unique Job Codes from the external database; clicking on one of the presented job codes will select that job. The unique job code of the selected job is displayed on the job selection button.
Record Number	Displayed in the format XX / YY. This read only field indicates that record number XX of YY matching records is selected.

Table 3-3: Database Viewer Toolbar

### **CLARiSOFT** Toolbox

The Toolbox contains all field types that can be placed on the image design area. These fields are then either printed by the coder or, marked as non-printable and used as bases / reference data for other fields. Click on the required field type to select it and then click in the required location on the image design area to place the field.

#### **Field Types**

lcon	Description
AC Text	Text fields allow fixed text information such as 'Lot Number' or user entered information to be included in your printed image.
Time	Time fields insert the current time onto the printed image. The real-time capabilities of the selected coder are used to do this.
Date	Inserts the current date onto the printed image. As well as using a coder's real-time ability to print dates it is also possible to derive dates in multiple formats in the image and download as text.
1 <sup>2</sup> 3 Counter	A counter field instructs the selected coder to manage and print incremental numeric and alphanumeric data.
€\$ Price	A price field is similar to a text field with the addition of specific formatting for currency data printing.
Secondary Barcode	Displays a list of barcodes commonly printed on secondary packaging (e.g. EAN128). Data in the field is converted to the required barcode by the selected coder.
Primary Barcode	Displays a list of barcodes commonly printed on primary products (e.g. EAN13). Data in the field is converted to the required barcode by the selected coder.
Logo	CLARiSOFT enables picture / logo / graphic files to be embedded into an image. A wide range of formats are available (.jpg, .bmp, .png, etc.) Support for this object type is dependent on the model of coder.
Drawing	Drawing fields allow lines, boxes and ellipses to be drawn on the image. Note that not all coders support drawing graphics.
Text Block	Text Block fields allow you to define an area of the image where text can appear. If the text is too long to fit on a single line it will automatically wrap onto the next line. If the text is too large to fit in the text block area, the font will automatically be reduced until it fits. This feature is only supported on certain models of coder.

Table 3-4: Field Types

### Menu Bar

CLARiSOFT core functionality can be accessed through the CLARiSOFT menus and Sub-menus. The table below supplies a high level overview of the functions; later sections in the manual will describe the functionality in greater detail.

Menu	Sub Menu	Key Functions
File	New	Create a new image file.
	Open	Open an existing image file.
	Save	Save current image file.
	Save As	Save current image file under a new name.
	User Level	If login security is enabled this function enables the user to create / manage user security levels and permissions (if user has sufficient authorisation).
	Date Calculations	Opens the Date Calculation Manager to enable the creation and maintenance of calculated dates, date concessions, date rounding and calendar rules.
	Data Sources	Enables the user to create and maintain ODBC data sources. Used when inserting dynamic data from external databases into the message.
	Select Coder	Select this option to change the target coder. CLARiSOFT will retain the objects on the image design area (where applicable – depending on coder) and move / resize them to fit if the image size is changed.
	Properties	This option displays a dialog box containing the image file properties (dimensions of image, orientation, number of sub-images, etc.). Other information is displayed depending on the target coder. The user is able to set coder specific parameter values that are downloaded to the coder at the same time as the image file. The parameters available depend on the target coder but instruct the coder to perform specific functions such as invert print, reverse print, set character gap inverse or set the start of day. Depending on the target coder, this dialog box can also present tools to create and manage sub- images and print-head assignment. (Used in multiple printhead and master/slave applications).
	Print Preview	Allows the user to preview the image before printing / downloading.

Table 3-5: CLARiSOFT Menu

Menu	Sub Menu	Key Functions	
File (Continued)	Sub Image Preview	If using sub-images, this option allows the user to preview and compare up to four sub-images.	
	Print	The Print and Job Download dialog boxes perform	
	Job Download	the same task in current versions of CLARISUITE. The two options remain for backward compatibility purposes only. Throughout this manual, when referring to "Printing", either of these options are interchangeable.	
	Recent files	Displays the 6 most recently opened image files. Selecting one of the entries will open the image file for editing.	
	Exit	Close current image file (if applicable) and quit CLARISOFT.	
Edit	Undo	Undo the last action.	
	Redo	Repeat the last action.	
	Cut	Remove the selected item(s) from the image design area and place them onto the clipboard.	
	Сору	Copy the selected item(s) on the image design area and place them onto the clipboard.	
	Paste	Paste the contents of the clipboard onto the image design area (where applicable).	
	Delete	Remove the selected item(s) from the image design area.	
View	Toolbar	Display or hide the main CLARiSOFT Toolbar.	
	Status Bar	View or hide the Status Bar.	
	Format Viewer	View or hide the Format Viewer.	
	Database Viewer	View or hide the Database Viewer.	
	Zoom In	Zoom in one step on the image design area.	
	Zoom Out	Zoom out one step on the image design area.	

Table 3-5: CLARiSOFT Menu

Menu	Sub Menu	Key Functions
Tools	Alignment	Displays a sub-menu with options for aligning and spacing / distributing selected items on the image design area.
	Rotation	Displays a sub-menu with options for rotating selected items on the image design area.
	Field Order	Allows control over the field order for printers where the order of sending data is essential.
	Select Language	Displays a list of supported languages allowing the user to switch the CLARiSOFT application to another language. Changes the application dialogue boxes, menus, etc. – not the content of the image design area.
	Options	Displays a dialog box allowing user to configure primary application settings such as editing preferences, working directory, enabling login control, SSCC setup, printer connectivity, database configuration and print mode (batch or sequence mode). These functions are described in detail throughout this manual.
	Start of Day	By default, dates are incremented at midnight. This option enables the date changeover to be set to any other time.
Help	Contents	Displays the contents page of the CLARiSOFT on-line help system.
	Activate	Leads the operator through the process of activating the software if using software, rather than hardware (dongle), licensing. Software licensing is available only in certain instances – contact your local Videojet representative for more information.
	About CLARiSOFT	Displays the version of the software in use.

Table 3-5: CLARiSOFT Menu

#### **Status Bar**

The status bar displays the following information:

- Status messages
- x and y position of the cursor for accurate positioning
- Selected unit of measure
- User ID currently logged in (if user login functionality enabled)
- Sub-image number (if one is in use)

Ready	98, 10	mm

Figure 3-4: Status Bar

## **Basic Image Creation**

4

This chapter introduces the basic elements of image design via the creation of three basic images:

- 1 *Use by* date printed by a Continuous Ink Jet device to explore text and date fields.
- **2** Secondary packaging image printed by a Large Character printer on a carton which introduces Logos, Barcodes and Drawing Objects.
- 3 Enhancing example two above to automatically increment the box number as each is printed. This example describes how to use counter fields, non-printed items and merge fields.

It is recommended to work through these examples in sequence to build a sound understanding of core CLARiSOFT functionality. For instructions on how to print image files see Chapter 5, "Printing in CLARiSOFT". All sample image and graphic files used in these examples are shipped with the electronic version of this manual in the 'Sample CIFFs' folder.

#### **Basic Image Containing Use-By Date**

This image contains static text and a date field displaying a use-by date. The operator is prompted to enter the use-by date when the job is selected. Date functions is covered in more detail in Chapter 6, "Date Calculations".

#### **Define Target Coder**

1 Click *File* > *New* to create a new image. The following screen is displayed. Select a target coder and image / size options.

CLARISOFT	×
Select the Coder you wish to design for CLARISOFT Generic Image Design Software Generic Image Design Software	Select format Default  Enter Image Width(mm) 210.00 Enter Image Height(mm) 297.00  Concel

Figure 4-1: Select Coder

- 2 For this example, print using a Videojet 1620 WSI Continuous Ink Jet. Click *Videojet > WSI > WSI 1620* in the list below *Select the Coder you wish to design for.*
- **3** From the *Select Format* drop down list, select *12-High*. This tells CLARiSOFT that the image to be printed as 12 dots / drops high and it sets the Image Design Area to the corresponding height.
- 4 Leave the value in field *Enter Image Width(mm)* at 100.00. The *Enter Image Height(mm)* field is disabled, when printing via a CIJ, the *Select Format* option defines the height of the print area. The screen is displayed as follows.

	CLARISOFT			×
A	Select the Coder you wish to design for	^	Select format	•
CLARISOFT Generic Image Design Software	<ul> <li>→ Videojet</li> <li>↔ CLARITY</li> <li>↔ ESI</li> <li>↔ WSI</li> <li>↔ WSI</li> <li>↔ WSI</li> <li>↔ WSI</li> <li>↔ WSI</li> <li>↔ WSI</li> <li>↓ WSI<td>~</td><td>Enter Image Width(mm) 100.00 Enter Image Height(mm) 3.50 OK Car</td><td>ncel</td></li></ul>	~	Enter Image Width(mm) 100.00 Enter Image Height(mm) 3.50 OK Car	ncel

Figure 4-2: Select Format

**5** Click *OK* to close the dialog box and start editing the image. CLARiSOFT sets the image design area to match the dimension set on the previous screen.



Figure 4-3: CLARiSOFT Main Screen

#### **Create a Static Text Field**

6 Click the *Text* tool in the toolbox. CLARiSOFT automatically places a text box on the image design area and displays the *Text Properties* dialog box:



Figure 4-4: Text Properties

7 Enter into the *Default Text* field the text *Use By:* . Ensure there is a space at the end of the text. Click *Apply*. The dialog box appears as follows:

		Maximum N	umber of Characters
Pixed Text			inited bength
Use Br			
030 09.			International Data
Justification		Pad Character	International Data
Left	-		
User Entered Data			
Characters Allowed			
Any Characters	Ŧ		
Promot Message			
Promot Value			
O Default Value	🔿 Blank		🕐 Last Value
✓ Prompt at Coder			
Database			
Data Source			
		Ψ	Select
Field to Use			
		~	Add Field
Checksum Calculation			

Figure 4-5: Text Properties -Text

8 In this step, increase the size of the font to match the height of the Image Design Area (as defined in Step 3 above). Click on the *Font* tab and change the font size to *12 High International* by selecting this option from the drop down list below the text 'Font Name'. Click *Apply*.

ext Font General		
Preview		
AaBbCc		
Font Name		Font Size
12 high International	-	12
Magnification		
Width Percentage	Height Percentage	
100	100	
Featurer		
Bold		
Double Spaced		
Channel and Michight	Finale	
Character width	single +	
Text Direction		
Render text left to right	Render text	right to left

Figure 4-6: Text Properties - Font

**9** Click on the *General* tab to give this field a unique, meaningful name. Whilst CLARiSOFT assigns each field in an image a unique name it is good practice to assign meaningful 'friendly' names. In the *Field Name* box enter 'txtUseBy'. Click *Apply*.

fext Font General		
Field Name		
txtUseBy		
Position and Size		
(Position (mm)	Y Position (mm)	
0.00	0.00	
Nidth (mm)	Height (mm)	
0.49	0.12	
Drientation (Degrees)		
0 💌		
eatures		
Printed	Non-Printed	
Field Inverse		
Field Mirror Image		
CLARINET Logged Field		
Field Not Logged	-	
Encrypted Field		
NONE	•	

Figure 4-7: Text Properties - General

**10** Click *OK* to close the dialog box. The image design area should look like the following image.



Figure 4-8: Image Design Area

#### **Create a User Entered Date Field**

11 Click on the *Date* tool in the CLARiSOFT Toolbox. A date field is placed on the image design area (next to the static text entered previously) and the *Date Properties* dialog box appears.

Date Format	Separator
<mark>√dd/MM/yyyy</mark>	
Date to Use     O     PC Date	Coder Date
Date Type	Language
Current Date	✓ English ✓
Calculation to Use	
Minimum Offset	Maximum Offset
Minimum Offset 0 Prompt Message	Aaximum Offset
Vinimum Offset 0 Prompt Message © Default Value	Aaximum Offset

Figure 4-9: Date Properties

- **12** For this job, we want the operator to enter the 'Use-By date' whenever the job is printed. To do this, select the option *User Entered Date* from the drop down list located below 'Date Type'.
- **13** Within the *Date Properties* dialog box, set the Font size to be *12 High International* on the *Font* tab and give the field a friendly Field Name of 'dtUseByDate' on the *General* tab.
- **14** Click *OK* to save the properties and close the dialog box. The previously added date field is set to display the current date and CLARiSOFT should look as follows:



Figure 4-10: Image Design Area

#### Saving the Image File to Disk

15 CLARiSOFT saves image files to the user-definable default working directory. Click *Tools > Options...* to display the *CLARiSOFT Options* dialog box and then click on the *General* tab. The following screen is displayed where it is possible to select a new working directory by clicking on the *Browse* button:

CLARISOFT Options	tabase Setup   Print Mode   SSCC
Current Working Directory	
C:\CIFF Image Files\	
	Browse
🔲 Require User Login	
Screen Updates	
Enable Screen Updates	
Screen Update Interval	Units
0	Seconds -
Enable Delete Jobs	

Figure 4-11: Save Image

- 16 Click OK to save changes and close the CLARiSOFT Options dialog box.
- 17 Click *File > Save As...* to display the standard *Windows* save dialog box. Select the required storage location (if different from the working location defined above), enter a file name (for this example set the file name to be BasicUseByDate) and click *Save*. CLARiSOFT appends the extension '.ciff' to image files.
#### **Basic Image for Secondary Packaging**

This example describes the steps required to build a typical carton / secondary packaging image and introduces new tools / fields: Logos, Barcodes and Drawings. It also introduce the object alignment and spacing tools.

An example of the completed image:



Figure 4-12: Secondary packaging Image

#### **Define Target Coder**

- Start a new image in CLARiSOFT (*File > New*) and in the target coder selection screen select *Videojet > CLARiTY > Videojet 2360*. The Videojet 2360 is a Large Character Marking (LCM) coder ideally suited for printing directly onto shipping cartons.
- **2** Set the image width to 260mm and leave the height at 70.52mm (the maximum print height for the Videojet 2360 print head).
- **3** The Videojet 2360 does not have any print templates / settings that are affected by the *Format* drop down list so this can be left at 'Default'.
- 4 Click OK.

#### Insert a Logo

**5** Click on the *Logo* tool in the Toolbox and then click in the image design area at the location to place the object. For this example click approximately at coordinates 5, 5 (millimetres across and down from the top left corner of the image design area – the status bar indicates the current x & y position). A sample logo is placed at the selected location and the *Logo Properties* dialog box appears.

6 Click the *Browse* button and locate the file 'CLARiSUITE Logo.jpg' (note that the 'File Type' will need to be changed to 'jpg' in the *File Open* dialog box). Select the file and click *Open* to return to the *Logo Properties* dialog box.

General	
Туре	
Fixed Logo	-
File Name	
C:\Sample Graphics\	CLARISUITE logo.jpg
	Browse
Fixed Logo Support	
Logo Sizing	
Source Width (mm)	Source Height (mm)
255.29	162.62
Lock field size to st	ze of Source Image
Field Width (mm)	Field Height (mm)
255.29	162.62
Winterin Associ De	atio
Mantan Aspect Ra	
Mantan Aspect Ra	
Database	
Database Data Source	
Database Data Source	* Select
Database Data Source Field to Use	* Select

Figure 4-13: Logo Properties

7 If required, explicitly set the size of the logo on this tab and give the field a 'friendly name' on the *General* tab. Click *OK* to close the dialog box and insert the selected graphic into the image.

*Note: CLARiSOFT* work only with monochrome logos and automatically convert colour sources files if required.



Figure 4-14: Logo on the main screen

8 The logo is too big to entirely fit in the image design area. If CLARiSOFT cannot print an object correctly, it changes its colour from black to red. This occurs if the object is partially (or fully) off the image design area or if the object overlaps with another object or the target coder cannot support overlapped fields. Resize the logo by dragging the bottom right corner (indicated with a small, blue square) diagonally up to the left. Reduce the size so that the bottom of the logo is approximately 5mm above the bottom of the image design area as seen in the following screenshot:



Figure 4-15: Logo Resized

#### **Insert a Drawing**

**9** In the finished image, there is a rectangular box around its perimeter; this is added using the *Drawing* tool. Click on the *Drawing* tool in the Toolbox and clicking on the location of the top, left hand corner of the rectangle. The *Drawing Properties* dialog box appears.

Drawing Properties		<
Graphic General		
Primitive Type		
Outline box	•	
Line width (mm)		
0.42		
		4
	OK Cancel Apply	

*Figure 4-16: Drawing Properties* 

- **10** As the default drawing shape ('Primitive Type') is the required *Outline Box*, click on *OK* to insert the drawing shape and close the dialog box.
- 11 The inserted outline box is not big enough; drag the bottom, right corner of the box (as highlighted with a small, blue square) until the box is approximately 3mm from all edges of the image design area. Objects can be selected by clicking on them.

#### **Inserting a Barcode**

CLARiSOFT offers a wide range of industry standard primary and secondary packaging barcodes which is printed by coders with in-built support for the selected barcode. If the coder does not support a specific barcode it is not possible to add that barcode to the image.

12 For this example include an ITF barcode; a 14 digit Global Trade Item Number (GTIN) commonly used on secondary packaging. Click on *Secondary Barcode* in the Toolbox and then click on the required print location in the image design area (for this example approximately 130, 35 using the coordinates in the status bar). A list of available secondary barcodes is present.

		TITIT	ОК
REFERENCE IN	(01) 45 8 2 3	65612248	Cancel
Code 128	EAN128	IIF	
PDF417	GS1 DataBar		Нер
	Expanded		

Figure 4-17: Select Barcode

**13** Click on *ITF* and then *OK* to close the barcode selection dialog box and display the *ITF Properties* dialog box. This dialog contains the required parameters to correctly design and populate an ITF.

Barcode Data		
05012345123455		
Type		Manag
Hixed Text	•	Merge
Magnification(%)	Thick Thin Ratio	Bar Height (mm)
70.5 👻	3.0 -	25.00
Human Readable		
V Display Human Rea	adable Text	
Human Readable :	Style No	o Formatting 🔹
Barcode Features		
Automatically calo.	late Check Digit	
Bearer Bars		
Bearer Box		
Specify Manua	Size	4.80
HGauges		
🗸 Quiet Margins		
Specify Manua	Size	10.0X -
Database		
Data Source		Select
Data Source		
Data Source	*	

Figure 4-18: ITF Properties

14 CLARiSOFT places a default value in the *Barcode Data* field. Enter a 14 digit numeric value in this field (CLARiSOFT allow longer or shorter lengths but there must always be an even number of digits) and give the field a friendly name of 'bcITF' on the *General* tab. Click *OK* to close the *ITF Properties* dialog box.



Figure 4-19: Image Design Area

#### **Adding Text Fields**

15 To complete the design of the image add two text fields above the ITF barcode. The upper most text field should have the default text of *CLARiSOFT Software* in Arial 30 point (fonts are changed via the *Font* tab on the field properties dialog box) and the lower text field should state *Box 1 of 1* in Arial 16 point. The image should look something like the following screen shot.



Figure 4-20: Final Image

#### **Aligning and Spacing Objects**

- **16** Click on the text field *CLARiSOFT Software* to select it and then hold the *Shift* key on the keyboard whilst clicking on the text *Box 1 of 10* and the ITF Barcode. This selects all three objects.
- 17 Click on the *Horizontal Centre* button on the toolbar or *Tools* > *Alignment* > *Horizontal Alignment* from the menu. This aligns the centre points of all three objects.
- 18 With the same three objects still selected click on the *Vertical Spacing* button on the toolbar (or *Tools > Alignment > Vertical Spacing*) from the menu. The spacing dialog box appears; enter 5 in the *Field Spacing* box to ensure a unified 5mm gap between each object. The image will now look like:



Figure 4-21: Aligned Image

#### Save the Image

**19** Click *File* > *Save As...* and select the required location for storing the file. For this example use the file name 'Secondary with ITF' and click *Save*.

#### **Basic Image with Counter Field**

This example extends the functionality and flexibility of the image file created in the previous example. The field stating *Box 1 of 10* is altered so that the box number automatically increases by one with each print.

This is performed by building up a text field variant called a *Merge Field* that consists of three other non-printed fields concatenated together: two text fields and the counter field.

A reminder of how the final image will look.



Figure 4-22: Final Image

#### Prepare the image file

- 1 Locate and open the image file created in the previous example ('Secondary with ITF.ciff').
- **2** Save the file under a new name ('Secondary with ITF and Counter.ciff') using the standard *File* > *Save As...* functionality.

#### **Create the Supporting Text Fields**

**3** Click on the *Text* tool in the toolbox and click on the CLARiSOFT background area to place the field. As this text is not printed but used instead within another printed field, it is OK, and normal practice, to place this off the image design area. The default text should read 'Box' (note the trailing space). Give this field a friendly name of 'txtBeginningText' on the *General* tab and select the *Non-printed* option on the same tab. Click *OK* to save the properties and note that the field is now be grey in colour to indicate a non-printed field.

Repeat the steps in point three above to create another text field called txtEndingText that has the default text of ' of 10' (note the leading space) that is also non-printed. The two fields *Options* dialog boxes should look as follows:



Figure 4-23: Text Properties



Figure 4-24: Image with Non-Printed Fields

#### Add a Counter Field

4 A counter field instructs the coder to increment a numeric / alpha / alphanumeric field by a certain amount at each print. It is the coder that manages the incrementing – the message is not downloaded for each print.

Click on the *Counter* tool in the toolbox and then place the counter field next to the two supporting text fields created in the previous step.

- **5** Ensure *Numeric* is selected from the drop down list below *Type* on the *Numeric* tab of the *Counter Properties* dialog box. This tells the printer to print and increment a numeric field.
- 6 Set the *Number of Digits* to 2 (as the largest number that is printed is '10').
- 7 Select the *No Padding* option as we do not want the number printed as '01' or '1'.
- 8 Set the *Start Value* to 1 and *End Value* to 10 as we do not want to print a figure above 10 (the maximum number of boxes). The *Step Size* should be set to '1' to tell the printer to increment the number by one at each print. The *Numeric* tab of the *Counter Properties* dialog box should now look like:

iype		
Numeric	-	
Printe and Counter Ve	hue.	
I not sper Counter va	Restat on Bollover	
Current News	Prestant on Honover	
No Parent Counter Name		-
Ino raters courses		
Number of Digits	Pad Digit	
2	No Padding	
	Pad with leading	g zeros
	Pad with leading	g spaces
Start Value	End Value	Step Size
1	10	1
Start Value		
Default Value	Last Value	Prompt for Value
fromot Message		
Prompt Message		
Prompt Message Prompt With		

Figure 4-25: Counter Properties

**9** Set the font to 15 point and on the *General* tab supply a friendly field name of 'cntBoxNo' and specify that this field is *Non-printed*.

#### **Create a Merge Field**

- **10** To ensure the label is printed as clearly and professionally as possible with correct character spacing, now build a 'Merge Field' consisting of the beginning text, counter, and ending text concatenated together. Double click on the text field *Box 1 of 10* to display its properties dialog box. Alternatively, right click on it and select *Properties*... from the pop-up menu that appears.
- 11 The *Type* drop down list is currently set to *Fixed Text* (the default). Change this to *Merge Field* by selecting this option from the list. A new button entitled *Merge*... appears.

Text Font General	
Preview Box	
Type Maximum Nur	mber of Characters
Merge Field 👻 4	Fixed Length
Default Text	
Box	
	International Data
Justification Pad Character	
Loft Suckflord	Merce

Figure 4-26: Merge Field

**12** Click on the *Merge*... button to display the *Field Merger*.

Preview		
Available Fields	Selected Field	ds
cntBoxNo Field02 Field03 btBeginningText btEndingText	Add ->	Move Up
Selection		

Figure 4-27: Field Merger

**13** A list of available fields that can be merged appear in the left list box (a good example of why friendly field names are so important). Select and add the fields that need to be merged so that they appear in the *Selected Fields* list box. The sequence in which they are concatenated can be altered using the *Move Up* and *Move Down* buttons.

Add the *txtBeginningText*, *cntBoxNo* and *txtEndingText* to the *Selected Fields* list box and sequence them so that the *Field Merger* looks as follows.

Preview Box 1 of 10			
Available Fields		Selected Fields	
cntBoxNo Field02 Field03 btBeginningText btEndingText	Add -> <- Remove	bd Beginning Text ont BoxNo bd Ending Text	Move Up
Selection of 10	2		_
	Help	ОК	Cancel

Figure 4-28: Order Selected Fields

Click *OK* to close the *Field Merger* and *OK* again to close the *Text Properties* dialog box.

**14** The image file is now completed. At every print, the merge field displays the correct box number based on the Non-Printed counter field.



Figure 4-29: Final Image with Merged Fields

**15** Save the image (*File > Save*).

# **Printing in CLARiSOFT**

# 5

CLARiSOFT offers flexible printing options that fall primarily into offline and online modes:

- Offline: The required image files are transferred to the coder via a storage device such as a USB stick and stored in the coder's memory for future use.
- Online: The image file is transferred to a device via TCP/IP or RS232 serial cable for printing.

Many printing and image file management features are coder specific. Please check the specific features of your coder to understand capabilities.

CLARiSOFT can also print to Windows printers using the standard Microsoft Windows printer drivers and print management functions.

# **Offline Printing**

When offline printing, it is necessary to transfer the image file or files to the required coder or coders and use the features of the coder to transfer the image file to the coder's memory. Once in memory the image file can be retrieved and printed upon demand.

Please consult your coder's documentation to understand its file management capabilities and processes required to transfer the image file from the storage device to the coder.

If CLARiSOFT is used to modify the image file then the image stored in the coder will need to be replaced with the new image to pick up the changes. Furthermore, the new image will need to be re-selected for printing at the coder interface.

Images should never be transferred from a coder to a memory stick for editing in CLARiSOFT - this usually results in an image being rotated by 90 degrees. Instead, edit the file originally created by CLARiSOFT.

#### Download a Job File using USB Memory Stick

Do the following tasks to download a job file from the PC to the printer using a USB memory stick:

- 1 Insert the USB memory stick into the PC.
- **2** On the *File* menu, click *Job Download*.



Figure 5-1: Job Download

**3** The *Download* dialog box appears.

Creat think booker
•
ile Database Record

Figure 5-2: Download Dialog Box

**4** Select *Real-Time Coder* under *Printer Type*.

5 Make sure that the correct printer is displayed under *Select Output Device*.

*Note:* If the correct output device is not selected, the image will not be correct for the printer.

- 6 Select *Print to File* under *Image Options*.
- 7 Select the USB memory device to use from the drop down list.

*Note: The 'Print What' option will not be available until a suitable memory device is selected.* 

8 To download only the currently opened job file, select *Current Image* under *Print What*?.

To download multiple job files that have been saved to the PC, select *File* and navigate to the location in the PC where the files are stored. Highlight the jobs to be transferred and click *Open*.

**9** The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears.

ĺ	Job Selection Confirmation	<b>X</b>
	Please confirm that the following images contain the correct data .	
I	CLARISOFT Summary	
	Factory Location:London	^
	CLARICOM Proge Coset Progeneticeen	

Figure 5-3: Job Selection Confirmation

**10** Click *OK*. CLARiSOFT displays the download progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.



Figure 5-4: Download Progress



When transferring an image using a USB memory stick, failure to use *Print to File* procedure will result in errors and rotated images.

11 Remove the USB memory stick from the PC.

## **Online Printing**

Online printing offers increased levels of flexibility and functionality by allowing an image file to be transferred directly from CLARiSOFT to the coder over TCP/ IP or an RS232 Serial cable. This option requires the coder to be connected either to an Ethernet network or directly to the computer running CLARiSOFT.

CLARiSOFT Print Manager, a standalone software application installed at the same time as CLARiSOFT, offers online printing functionality of image files without the requirement of first opening the files in CLARiSOFT. This reduces the risk of undesired or accidental changes to the image file contents whilst open in CLARiSOFT.

For more information refer to Chapter 9, "CLARiSOFT Print Manager".

#### **Configuring Printer Communications**

Connection must be established to the required non-Windows, online printer to enable online printing directly from CLARiSOFT.

Within CLARiSOFT click on the *Tools* menu and then *Options*... to display the CLARiSOFT Options dialog box.

Click on the *Printing* tab to display and edit the printer configuration options.

aring	General	Printing	Database Setu	p Print Mod	de SSCC
Comm	unication	Settings			
0	Use Serial	Port Comm	unications		
			Port	No ports av	ailable 👻
			Baud Rate	115200	-
			Parity	None	-
			Data Bits	8	Ψ
			Stop Bits	1	Ŧ
			Handshaking	None	+
	llee TCP/	IP Commun	ications		
۲	IP Add	ress (e.a. 1	92.168.10.100)	127 . 0	. 0 .
			Port	3001	
			101		
Windo	ws Printer	Setup		-	
V V	Prompt for Use Outlin	Variable D e Box on V	ata on Windows Vindows Printers	s Printers s	
Printin	g Setup				
	ference fi	eld to use	ALD	iary CIFF Ref	erence
Ciff Re					

Figure 5-5: Communication Setup

#### **Connection via Serial Port**

If the required coder is connected via serial port select the option *Use Serial Port Communications*. The serial port configuration options is enabled and the TCP/IP options is disabled.

Enter the required serial settings that match those of the printer being printed to. Click *OK* to save the changes and close the dialog box. CLARiSOFT is now ready to print to this online printer via serial communications.

#### **Connection via TCP/IP**

If the required coder is connected over a network using TCP/IP select the option *Use TCP/IP Communications*. Serial communication options is disabled and the TCP/IP address and port fields is enabled.

Enter the TCP/IP address of the required printer and the communication port to communicate through. Click *OK* to save the changes and close the dialog box. CLARiSOFT is now ready to print to this online printer via TCP/IP communications.

#### **Print Preview**

CLARiSOFT offers a powerful print preview function to enable you to review the image before printing.

Click on the *File* menu and then *Print Preview* to view the print preview dialog box. This can also be achieved by clicking on the print preview button on the CLARISOFT toolbar.

Select image to preview	-	ок
Select toom (%):		Cancel
Best Fit 🔹		Print
		Problem Fields
R.	CLARiSOFT Box 1 of 1	Software
	0501245121	
Image Size 259 94mm x 70 52mm		
indige are raa administration		
14 % Black (134280 Poxels)		
14 % Black (134280 Pixels) Select coder to print preview as:		
14 % Black (134280 Pixele) Select coder to print preview as: [Videojet (CLARiTY) - Videojet 2360	•	
14 % Black (134280 Pixele) Select coder to print preview as: [Videojet (CLAR) TY) - Videojet 2350 Select a coder format to preview with:	•	Display hidden fields

Figure 5-6: Print Preview

#### **Select Image to Preview**

Use this option if working with sub-images to select the sub-image to review.

#### Select zoom (%)

By default the *Best Fit* option is selected to display the entire image file in the print preview. The zoom level can be adjusted by selecting a pre-defined zoom level from the drop down list. Left or right-clicking on the preview is also zoom in and out.

#### **Image Attributes**

The image size and percentage of image that is printed is displayed below the preview. This is useful to allow you to reduce the amount of ink used. The number of 'Pixels' indicates the amount of ink which is used for printing the current message – this is used to calculate the approximate number of prints achievable per unit (bottle, cartridge) of ink.

#### **Preview As**

This option allows to preview the image as it would appear printing on a different coder. CLARiSOFT reformats the design to match the coder's capabilities. If CLARiSOFT perceives that printing errors occurs (fields don't fit, unsupported fonts, etc.) the preview tool displays an error report with a detailed list of reasons. The *Problem Fields* button also displays the error report.

#### **Coder Format Preview**

The different formats / templates supported by the coder can be selected here to see the changes to the image that would occur if that format / template were used during printing.

The image below shows the preview of the previously created carton image (designed for a Videojet 2360 LCM) if it were to be printed on a Videojet 8510 TIJ. The image is too big for the 8510 even when selecting the 4-head format.



Figure 5-7: Coder Format Preview

#### **Printing the Image**

Select *File* > *Print* from the menu (or click on the *print* button from within the CLARiSOFT toolbar) to print an image.

Print - C:\Sample CIFFs\Secondar	y with ITF and Counter.ciff
Printer Type	
Windows Printer	Real-Time Coder
Select Output Device	_
Videoiet (CLARiTY) Videoiet 2360	•
Enter Number of Prints Required	
0 V Unlimited	
Image Options	
Oownload	
Ownload and Select	
Print to File	
	-
Print What	
Current image	File Database Record
	Help

Figure 5-8: Print Image

#### **Printer Type**

Select the option to print either to a Windows printer or to a real-time coder. This tells CLARiSOFT if it should print to a regular desktop printer (such as a Laserjet) via the Windows printing sub-system or if it should download to the printer we established connection to earlier in this chapter (see "Configuring Printer Communications" on page 5-5).

#### **Output Device**

If printing to a Windows printer is selected, this list contains the printers configured within the Windows operating system in which CLARiSOFT is running (the same list of printers that would available to applications such as Microsoft Excel or Word).

If the *Real-Time Coder* option is selected, this option is default to the coder for which the message has been designed. It is, however, possible to select another coder from within the list. Be aware that selecting another coder may seriously impact the format and content of the image file. Ensure you have previewed this image design on the required coder (using the print preview functionality) first.

#### **Number of Prints**

Depending on the coder selected it may be possible to request a specific number of prints. This is useful when working with a coder such as a standalone label printer and it is necessary to print multiple labels. This field is only enabled if the destination coder supports multiple print quantities.

#### **Image Options**

Only enabled if printing to a Real-Time Coder

- Download: Download the image to the coder and store in memory but do not select the job for printing.
- Download and Select: Download the job to the coders memory and select the job for printing.
- Print to file: Downloads the CIFF file to external storage device. Creates a folder called *Jobs* from the root of the storage device and stores the selected CIFF file in that folder. Also creates folders called *Fonts* and *Graphics* which store any non-standard fonts and any graphics used in the image design respectively. Simplifies the offline process of transferring the image to the required coder. This is the recommended way to transfer jobs to a CLARiTY printer. Copying the CLARiSOFT CIFF file directly to a USB stick is not recommended.

*Note:* 'Download' is not prompted for any variable information at the PC, however all variable information required by the image is prompted AT THE CODER.

**Note:** 'Download and Select' prompts for any variable information required by the image AT THE PC, and then download it to the coder as fixed text. If the image is subsequently selected at the coder, the variable information is not prompted.

#### **Print What**

- Current Image: Prints the currently opened image in CLARiSOFT.
- File: Allows you to select the CIFF file to print.
- Database record: Selects the CIFF file and external data to be printed from an external database. See Chapter 10, "CLARiSOFT Database Manager" for more information.

# **Date Calculations**

CLARiSOFT offers flexible date management functions that work in combination with the coders printing CLARiSOFT messages. These functions work to either completely remove the requirement to manually enter dates by automatically calculating the correct date or by strictly controlling dates that are manually entered by offering date selection rather than keyed data entry.

These functions remove the ability for an operator to manually enter the incorrect date.

## **User Entered Date**

If the operator must manually enter a date, then CLARiSOFT can constrain these dates to a range of dates that can be selected from, rather than manually keyed in.

The following example shows the procedure to create a date field and calculate a range of dates based on it. The operator can chose a date from this calculated range, during job selection.

1 Click *File* > *New* to create a new image. Select the coder and image / size options as shown in Figure 6-1.



Figure 6-1: Select the Coder

- 2 Click OK.
- **3** Click on the *Date* tool in the toolbox. CLARiSOFT places the current date on the image design area and displays the *Date Properties* dialog box.
- **4** In *General* tab of the *Date Properties* dialog box, give this field a unique meaningful name ('dtUserEnt' in this example). See Figure 6-2.

ext	Font	General	
Field Na	me		
dtUs	erEnt		
Position	and Siz	e —	
X Positio	on (mm)		Y Position (mm)
0.00			0.00
Width (i	nm)		Height (mm)
26.50	)		2.50
Orienta	tion (De	grees)	
0		•	
Feature	s —		
• Prir	nted		Non-Printed
Fiel	d Inver	se	
E Fiel	d Mirror	Image	
	u <u>M</u> irroi	inage	
		ed Field	
Field	NotLog		<b></b>
( inclu	not Log	.geo	
Encrypt	ted Field	1	
NON	-		•

Figure 6-2: Date Properties

**5** In the *Text* tab, select the option *User Entered Date* from the *Date Type* drop down list (see Figure 6-3). Selecting this option lets CLARiSOFT send the required commands to the coder to instruct it to prompt for a date selection during job set up.

ate Properties	
Text Font General	
Preview 08/10/2013	
00/10/2010	
dd/MM/vvvv	Forward Slash(/)      Advanced
•	
Date to Use	
© PC Date	<u>C</u> oder Date
Date Type	
Calculation to Use	
Minimum Offset Units Days Minimum Offset 5	Maximum Offset
13 Oct 2013	18 Oct 2013
Prompt Message	
Please Enter the Date	
Default Value	© <u>L</u> ast Value
	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 6-3: Date Properties-Text tab

- 6 Select *Coder Date* under *Date to Use*. By selecting this, the dates that the operator can select will be derived from current date in the coder rather than the current date in the PC.
- 7 In this example, we will generate a date using a date offset. A date offset is calculated from an offset value, which can be a number of days, months or years. We will generate a date, or range of dates using a defined offset period from the base date, defined in Step 6 (coder date).

Select Days from the Minimum Offset Units drop down list.

8 Select the minimum offset as '5' and maximum offset as '10'. CLARiSOFT calculates the offset dates based on the coder date. The operator will only be able to select a date between these calculated offset dates.

In this example, the operator will be able to select a date between 5 days and 10 days from the current date in the coder during job selection for printing.

**9** Enter a prompt message that is to be displayed when the operator selects the job (*Please Enter the Date* in this example).

- **10** Save the image file to the disk. Name the file as 'User entd date'. Note that this will be the name of the job in the printer for selection, once we transfer this message to the printer.
- 11 Make sure that the computer running CLARiSOFT is connected to the coder.
- **12** Click *File > Print*. The *Print* dialog box appears.

Print - C:\CLARICOMDATA\User entd date.o	tiff X
Printer Type	
O Windows Printer	eal-Time Coder
Select Output Device	
Videojet (CLARiTY) VJ1650	•
Enter Number of Prints Required	
0 <u>U</u> nlimited	
Image Options	
Ownload	
O Download and Select	
Print to File	
	~
Print What	
Current image File	Database Record
	Help Close

Figure 6-4: Print

- **13** Select *Download* under *Image Options*.
- 14 Select Current Image under Print What.
- **15** The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears. Verify that the preview is correct and click *OK*.
- **16** The job download starts. CLARiSOFT displays the progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.

Progress	<u> </u>
Overall Progress	*
Completed	
CLARICOM Droige Color Brugeron Serve	-
Detail	Close

Figure 6-5: Download Progress

**17** At the coder's user interface, touch the *Job* button. The transferred image appears in the job select list. Note that the job name 'User entd date' is the same as the CIFF file name given in Step 10.

CLARITY	RUNNI	NG	
	Job Select		4
	ORANGE JUICE		
$\mathbf{O}$	User entd date		
		13/10/2013	
$\diamond$	Cancel		ок

Figure 6-6: Job Select

- **18** Select the job and touch *OK*.
- **19** The prompt message created in CLARiSOFT in Step 9 appears (see Figure 6-7).



Figure 6-7: Prompt Message

**20** Touch *Edit*.

**21** The coder calculates a range of dates that can be selected based on the current coder date and the offsets that we defined earlier.

O CLARITY							
		F	RUN	NIN	3	ų	$\times$
	in →l	Jser ent	d date <b>→F</b>	Please E	nter the	Date	•
9	•		0	ct 20	13		⊳
	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat	Sun
		1	2	3	4	5	6
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
	28	29	30	31			
		Canc	el			ОК	

Figure 6-8: Select Date

- **22** Select the required date from the available dates by touching the required date. The dates between the minimum and maximum offset days are displayed in white and are available for selection. All other dates are disabled and cannot therefore be incorrectly selected by the operator. The current coder date is shown in a red box and the current selection in blue. Touch *OK*.
- **23** A tick mark appears showing that this user entered field has been completed. The date is changed to the selected date in the preview.



*Figure 6-9: Updated Date* 

**24** Touch *OK*. The print preview is displayed.



Figure 6-10: Job Preview

**25** Touch *OK* to close the preview display. The job with the required date is now ready for printing.

## **Chained Dates**

A chained date is one which is calculated based on another existing date. In this example, we will create a *Sell By date* which is a calculated offset date from the current date. Then we will calculate the *Display Until date* which is a chained date, based on this sell by date.

- 1 Create an image selecting the *Coder* as Videojet 1650 and *Select format* as 12-high.
- 2 Create a fixed text field *Sell By* and name this field as 'txtSellBy' in the *General* tab.
- **3** Create another text field *Display Until* and name this field as 'txtDisplayUntil' in the *General* tab.
- 4 Create a date field to the right of 'txtSellBy' and name this field as 'dtSellBy' in the *General* tab. Leave all the parameters as default for now.
- **5** Create a date field to the right of 'txtDisplayUntil' and name this field as 'dtDisplayUntil' in the *General* tab. Leave all other parameters as default for now. The image design area should look like Figure 6-11.



Figure 6-11: Date Field Image

We will now change the first date field 'dtSellBy' as a calculated offset date on the current date.

- 6 Double click the 'dtSellBy' field. In the *Date properties* dialog box that appears, from the *Date Type* drop down list, select *Calculated Date*. Click on *Calc Manager*.
- 7 Click *New* in the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box to generate a new date calculation. A date calculation can be used more than once within a CIFF file.

8 In the *Date Calculation Properties* dialog box, enter the Calculation Name 'calcSellByOffset'. Leave the *Reference Date* as *Current Date* and select *Within Image* from the *Source* drop down list to tell CLARiSOFT to calculate a new date based on the current date in the existing image.

*Note: Make sure that a unique, meaningful name is entered for the date calculation.* 

Date Calculati	ion Properties				? ×
Calculation	User Concession	ns Rou	nding (	alendar f	Rules
Praview					
20 Nov 20	013				
				_	
Calculation	Name		Referen	ce Date	
calcSellB	lyOffset		Current	t Date	-
Source					
Within Im	age				-
Calculation					
O PC Bas	sed Calculation		Cod	er Based	Calculation
Autom	atically Update				
Default Of	feat		Unite		
20	1301		Dava		
30			Days		•
Database					
Data Sour	rce				
				Ψ.	Select Source
Database	Field				
				Ψ.	Add Field
Date Form	nat	Separa	tor		
уу	Ŧ	None		-	Select
	ок	Cano	xel	Apply	Help

Figure 6-12: Date Calculation Properties

- **9** Set the *Default Offset* as '30' and *Units* as 'Days'. The 'Sell By' date will be calculated by adding 30 days to the current date.
- **10** Click *Apply* and then click *OK*.
- 11 The calculation name appears in the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box. Click *OK*.

Date Calculation Manager	×
Supported Date Calculations	
calcSellByOffset	New
	Edit
	Remove
	Help
	OK

Figure 6-13: Date Calculation Manager

**12** A preview of the calculated date appears in the *Date Properties* dialog Box. Click *OK*.

ext Font General	
Provinu	
20/11/201	13
Date Format	Separator
	← Forward Slash(/)      ← <u>A</u> dvanced
Data ta Ura	
PC Date	Coder Date
Date Type	Language
Calculated Date	▼ English ▼
Calculation to Use	
calcSellByOffset	Calc Manager
Minimum Offset	Maximum Offset
0	
0 21 Oct 2013	21 Oct 2013
0 21 Oct 2013 Prompt Message	0         Image: Content of the second s
0 21 Oct 2013 Prompt Message	v         0         v           21 Oct 2013
0 21 Oct 2013 Prompt Message	v         0         v           21 Oct 2013         21 Oct 2013         21 Oct 2013           Last Value         glank         21 Oct 2013
0 21 Oct 2013 Prompt Message © Default Value	v         0         v           21 Oct 2013         21 Oct 2013           Last Value         glank
0 21 Oct 2013 Prompt Message	v     0     v       21 Oct 2013
0 21 Oct 2013 Prompt Message © Default Value	v     0     v       21 Oct 2013
0 21 Oct 2013 Prompt Message	V     0     V       Z1 Oct 2013
0 21 Oct 2013 Prompt Message	v     0     v       21 Oct 2013

Figure 6-14: Date Calculation Properties

**13** CLARiSOFT displays the calculated 'Sell By' date in the Image Design area. Note that the Display Until date is still the current date. In the following steps, we will calculate this date based on the 'Sell By Date'.



Figure 6-15: Chained Date based on another date

- 14 Double click on the 'dtDisplayUntil' field. In the *Date Properties* dialog box that appears, from the *Date Type* drop down list, select *Calculated Date*. Click on *Calc Manager*.
- **15** Click *New* in *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box to generate a new date calculation.
- **16** In the *Date Calculation Properties* dialog box, enter the *Calculation Name* 'calcDisplayUntil'. From the *Reference Date* drop down list, select 'calcSellByOffset' to tell CLARiSOFT that the calculation will be based on this date.
- **17** Select *Within Image from* the *Source* drop down list.
- **18** In the *Default Offset* box, select -2. This means the 'Display Until' date will be calculated by reducing two days from the 'Sell By' Date.

Date Calculation Properties
Calculation User Concessions Rounding Calendar Rules
Preview
18 Nov 2013
Calculation Name Reference Date
calcDisplayUntil calcSellByOffset -
Source
Within Image
Calculation
PC Based Calculation     Ocder Based Calculation
Automatically Update
Default Offset Units
-2 Days 🔻
Database
Data Source
▼ Select Source
Database Field
→ Add Field
Date Format Separator
yy v None v Select
OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 6-16: Chained Date based on another date

**19** Click *OK* to exit the dialog box. Click *OK* to close *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box, which now has two calculation names in it.

calcDisplayUntil	New
calcSellByOffset	Edit
	Remove
	Help
	ОК



- **20** Click *OK* to close the *Date Properties* dialog box.
- **21** The image will now look like



Figure 6-18: Final Image

Note that the Sell by date is 30 days after current date (which is 21/10/2013) and the display until date is 2 days before the Sell By date.

# **CLARiSOFT** Database

CLARiSOFT has the ability to link to external data sources to include dynamic data in messages at the time the job is downloaded to the printer. By default, CLARiSOFT uses its own database called 'CLARiSOFT Database' but can also be configured to use an external database if so desired.

### **Overview**

Placing data that needs to be printed within a CIFF file can be inconvenient if that data changes with each new job / batch (such as prices, serial numbers or lot numbers). To open the CIFF file, edit the data and save, is inefficient and also introduces risk. Whilst editing the CIFF file it is possible to accidently change field placement, data content etc. It may also not be desirable to give operators the ability to edit CIFF files.

CLARiSOFT comes with a powerful feature to avoid these issues – the ability to link fields within a CIFF file to a job database. With this functionality, the CIFF file will contain a mixture of static text that will not change and links to data in the database for the dynamic data. The data from the database is merged into the CIFF file before download.

A database contains jobs and jobs contain the data that needs to be merged into the CIFF file. Each job can use a different CIFF file or a CIFF file can be used by multiple jobs – further increasing efficiency. Simply adding a job to the database or changing data in a job will result in an updated message being printed with no need to edit the CIFF file(s). See Chapter 9, "CLARiSOFT Print Manager" for information on CLARiSOFT Print Manager – a tool to print messages without having to open the file in CLARiSOFT.

A sample database is supplied with CLARiSOFT that shall be used in the following example. See Chapter 10, "CLARiSOFT Database Manager" for more information on administrating the CLARiSOFT Database and editing the job data contained within it.

The following sections explain how to link a CLARiSOFT CIFF file to data in the sample database.
# **CLARiSOFT Database Structure**

CLARiSOFT is supplied with a sample database, that contains common data elements used in the product coding and marking industry (see Figure 7-1). You can configure this built-in, default database to suit your needs.

📜 CLARISOFT Da	tabase Manager								
<u>File Edit T</u> ool	s <u>H</u> elp								
🗋 🗳 🐜 🚿	)* )/ 📈 🗎	6 4 5	ę						
UniqueJobCode	JobCode1	JobCode2	JobCode3	Description	SellByOffset	UseByOffset	CIFFReference	PrimaryPackCode	Price
D001UK	Mega Market	Rice	250g	UK 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	longtext.ciff	0501234678909	£0.99
D002UK	Mega Market	Rice	500g	UK 500g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E	0504561237894	£1.80
D003IRL	Mega Market	Rice	250g	IRL 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501234678909	
D004IRL	Mega Market	Rice	500g	IRL 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E	0504561237894	
FP0001	Carolyn	Flapjack	100g	Carolyn's Flapja	000/00/00	012/00/00	FlapjackPrimary		0
M001UK	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	500g	UK 500g Chick	009/00/00	010/00/00	Inner Primary E	0509876543210	£1.80
M002UK	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	750g	UK 750g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501236547890	£2.70
M003IRL	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	500g	IRL 500g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary E	0509876543210	
M004IRL	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	750g	IRL 750g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501236547890	
M005UK	Market Place	Chicken Korma	500g	UK 500g Chick	010/00/00	012/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501239874566	£1.80
M006UK	Market Place	Chicken Korma	750g	UK 750g Chick	011/00/00	013/00/00	Inner Primary E	0503124659784	£2.70
M007IRL	Market Place	Chicken Korma	500g	IRL 500g Chick	010/00/00	012/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501239874566	
S001UK	Mega Market	Lasagne	250g	UK 250g Lasag	001/00/00	002/00/00	Inner Primary E	5078888881238	£0.99
S002UK	Mega Market	Lasagne	500g	UK 500g Lasag	002/00/00	003/00/00	Inner Primary E	507777771237	£1.80
S003UK	Mega Market	Ravioli	250g	UK 250g Ravioli	003/00/00	004/00/00	Inner Primary E	507666661236	£0.99

Figure 7-1: CLARiSOFT Sample Database

The CLARiSOFT database structure and format is defined below:

- Each row refers to a job. A job must have a unique reference so that CLARiSOFT can identify a specific job from amongst all the jobs in the database. The job defines the dynamic data to be printed (i.e. price, lot number, etc.) as well as meta data that CLARiSOFT uses to manage the job such as unique job code, name of message file(s) used with this job and other data that is used when integrating this job data with multiple coders in a CLARiNET coder and messaging network.
- Each column, which has a unique name, holds a specific item of dynamic print data or metadata used within a job. CLARiSOFT requires a certain number of columns to exist to be able to function correctly, all other columns are user definable to enable a company to store the specific data they need for their jobs.

From Figure 7-1, it can be seen that each row refers to the print jobs for a company manufacturing food products and columns hold such information as the source data for barcodes, prices, product names, etc.

# Linking fields to the CLARiSOFT Database

The following example shows how to link two fields in a message (Price and Useby Date) to the corresponding data in the underlying CLARiSOFT sample database.

## **Designing the Image Template**

In this example, we will use an existing CIFF file supplied with CLARiSOFT.

- 1 Open CLARiSOFT.
- 2 Open the file 'Outer Primary Example2.ciff' that is supplied with CLARiSOFT, from the default CIFF directory (typically C:\CLARICOMDATA). The following image will be displayed.



Figure 7-2: Open File

- **3** We will now delete the fields from this template to give us an empty file in which we will build our message. Select all the fields in the image design area and click *Delete* in the tool bar or use the *Delete* button on the keyboard.
- **4** In the following steps, we will create two static text fields displaying the text 'Use By' and 'Price'. This text will remain the same for all jobs using this template.

- **5** Click on the *Text* tool in the tool Box. Click on the Image Design Area where this field is to be placed. The *Text Properties* dialog box appears.
- 6 In the *Default Text* box, enter the text 'Use By'. Leave the other parameters as shown below.

ext Font General	
Preview	
Use By	
Гуре	Maximum Number of Characters
Fixed Text	6 Fixed Length
Default Text	
Use By	
	International Data
Justification	Pad Character
Left Justified 🔹	
User Entered Data	
Characters Allowed	
Any Characters 👻	
Prompt Value	lank 🖉 Lact Value
Prompt at Coder	janik O East value
Database	
Table Containing Index Fields	s v Select
Field to Use	
	✓ Add Field
Checksum Calculation	
NONE	•
Add checksum character t	to end of data
0	

Figure 7-3: Text Properties- Text

- 7 In the *General* tab, name this field as 'txtUseBy'. Click *OK*.
- 8 Now we have the first static field in the image design area. Drag and arrange this field to a suitable place in the design area.

CLARISOFT - CICLARICON	DATA Outer Prima	ary example2.cm		
<u>File Edit View T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp			
ها 🗅 💕 🖬   🕰 🕰	a 🎝 🕹 🕹	[1] [1] 이 (1) [ 수 여	- 토 의 ㅠ 프	王马马二本二
	t 2350	Default	8	1
•				
CLARISOFT Toolbox		10	20	30
A <sup>33</sup>				
Text				
- <u>-</u>				
Time		Use By		
		· ·		

Figure 7-4: Static Field

- **9** Create a second text field following the steps from Step 5 to Step 7 with a default text 'Price' and a field name 'txtPrice'.
- **10** The second static text field is created. Drag and place this field under the first static text field 'Use By' and align properly.



Figure 7-5: Second Static Text Field

11 Now we will create two fields which, when linked to the database, will contain the data from the CLARiSOFT database relating to the selected job. See later for details on how to select a job.

Click on the *Date* tool in the tool box and place it to the right side of the text 'Use By'. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears.

**12** Select the *Date Format* as 'dd/MM/yy'. Leave the other parameters as shown below.

Text Font Genera	al
Preview	
10/10/13	
Date Format	Separator
√ dd/MM/yy	Forward Slash(/)      Advanced
Date to Use	
PC Date	Q Coder Date
Date Type	Language
Current Date	▼ English ▼
Calculation to Use	
	✓ Calc Manager
Disabled	·
Disabled Minimum Offset 0	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset 0 Prompt Message	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset 0 Prompt Message 0 © Default Value	Maximum Offset       Image: Constraint of the second s

Figure 7-6: Date Properties

**13** In the *General* tab, name this field as 'dtUseBy'.

14 Click *OK*. The date field is created. Note that this is showing the current date, until we link this to the CLARiSOFT database.



Figure 7-7: Date Field Generated

**15** Click on the *Price* tool in the tool box and place it to the right side of the text 'Price'. The *Price Properties* dialog box appears. Select *Fixed Text* from the *Type* drop down list. Enter 10.00 in *Default Text*. Leave other parameters as shown below.

rice Properties		×
Text Font General		
Preview £10.00		
Туре		
Fixed Text	-	
Default Text	Minimum Price	Maximum Price
10.00		
Currency		
Currency     Calestian	fn (Pou	vnd) 🔻
Custom Selection	Major Curre	ency Minor
Custom Selection		Ency Minor
	Decimal P	lares 2 🔺
Price Format	Decement	
£1.05		•
Prompt Message		
Prompt Value		
<u>D</u> efault Value	Blank	🔘 Last Value
Data Source		
	~	Select
Field to Use		۲
(	ОК	Cancel Apply

Figure 7-8: Price Properties

- 16 In the *General* tab, name this field as 'prcItemPrice'.
- **17** Click *OK*. The price field is created in the image design area. Note that this is a static field, until we link this to the CLARiSOFT database.



Figure 7-9: Message Template

## Linking the CIFF to Jobs in the Database

A CIFF file can be used by multiple jobs in the database thus allowing different data for different jobs. CLARiSOFT needs to know which CIFF file should be used with the job and this is performed by storing the name of the associated CIFF file within the job record in the CLARiSOFT database. The CLARiSOFT database uses a specific field to store the name of the CIFF, by default this is called the 'CIFFReference'.

In certain instances, multiple CIFF files may be used per job i.e. when running CLARINET and multiple coders are used on the line for the same job. When the job is selected the correct CIFF file is download to each coder. This is supported by storing the name of each CIFF in a different field in the job record. Up to 5 different CIFF references can be stored and used within a job.

It is therefore important, when creating a CIFF that is linked to a job in a database, to correctly specify which CIFF reference field in the database should be used to store the name of the CIFF file.

This linking is performed as follows.

In CLARiSOFT, navigate to *Tools* > *Options* > *Printing*. Under *Printing Setup*, select *CIFF Reference* from the drop down list. This is the reference field for the primary CIFF file. The other fields are used if there is a second and third coder in use in the job.

ARisOF	T Option	s				2
Editing	General	Printing	Database	Setup	Print Mode	SSCC
Comm	unication S	Settings				
0	Use Serial	Port Comm	nunications			
				Port N	o ports availa	ible 🔻
			Baud F	Rate 1	15200	-
			P	arity N	one	-
			Data	Bits 8		~
			Stop	Bits 1		-
			Handsha	king N	one	-
	Use TCP/I	P Commun	lications			
	IP Addn	ess (e.g. 1	92.168.10.	100)	127 . 0	. 0 . 1
				Port 3	001	
Winda	we Printer	Satur				
Printin	Prompt for Use Outline g Setup	Variable D e Box on V	lata on Win Vindows Pri	dows P nters	rinters	
Ciff Re	eference fie	eld to use		CIFF R CIFF R Auxiliary Extra C	eference eference / CIFF Refere IFF Reference	nce e 1
		ОК	Cano	el	Apply	Help

Figure 7-10: CLARiSOFT Options

Now, we will link the date field and price field to the CLARiSOFT database. Note that the CLARiSOFT sample database already contains jobs assigned to this template and hence why this particular CIFF file was used for this example. When we link these fields to the database, CLARiSOFT searches for jobs containing *this* CIFF file name in the CIFFReference column of the database and returns the values to be used by the 'dtUseBy' and 'prcItemPrice' fields. Note that these data fields already exist in the sample database.

**18** Double click on the *price field* 'prcItemPrice' that was previously created. The *Price Properties* dialog box appears.

ext Font Gen	eral		
Preview			
£10.00			
Гуре			
CLARISOFT Datab	ase 🔻		
Default Text	Minimum Price	e Ma:	kimum Price
10.00			
Currency			
Current PC Cur	rency		
Selection	£p	(Pound)	-
Custom Selection	n Major	Currency	Minor
		ļ	
Price Format	Deci	mal Places	2
£1.05		•	
Prompt Morecore			
Tompt Hessage			
Learne Maker			
Ompt value     Opefault Value	C Blank	OL	ast Value
Data Source	0 2	0	
Table Containing I	ndex Fields	-	Select
Field to Use			
Drico		-	

Figure 7-11: Price Properties

- **19** From the *Type* drop down list, select *CLARiSOFT Database*. This directs CLARiSOFT to fetch the price data which corresponds to this job from the database.
- **20** From the *Field to Use* drop down list, select *Price*, which is the name of the field containing the data from the database.

**21** Click *OK*. The 'prcItemPrice' field turns green indicating that it is linked to a database.

CLARISOFI - CI(CLARICOMDATA/Outer Primary Example2- copy.citr							
Characterization and the second							
<u>File Edit View Tools Help</u>							
[2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2]							
🔍 🔍 400% 👻 Videojet 2350 Default 📑							
CLARISOFT Toolbox	<sup>60</sup>						
A	1 1						
Date							
2							
<b>13</b> Price £10.00							
Counter 8							
£s							
Secondary Barcode							

Figure 7-12: Linked Price Value Field

**22** Now we will link the date field to the underlying data in the database.

*Note:* Linking date fields to underlying data in the database is performed differently to other types of linked fields.

- **23** Double click on the *date field* 'dtUseBy' that was previously created. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears.
- **24** From the *Date Type* drop down list, select *Calculated Date*.
- **25** Click *New* in the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box.

te Calculati	on Properties					2
Calculation	User Concessions	Rour	nding	Calendar	Rules	
Preview						
10 Oct 201	13					
Calculation	Name		Referer	nce Date		
calcUseB;	y		Currer	nt Date		•
Source						
Date Offse	et from Claricom Dat	abase				-
Calculation						
PC Bas	ed Calculation		© Co	der Based	Calculat	ion
Automa	tionly Update		0			
	incally opulate					
Derault Off	set		Units			
U		•	Days			•
Database						
Data Source	:e				C	-
Table Co	ntaining Index Field	S		*	Select	Source
Database	Field					
<please< td=""><td>select an option&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td>Add</td><td>l Field</td></please<>	select an option>			-	Add	l Field
C <please SellBvOff</please 	select an option> fset			- 1		
UseByOf	fset				Se	elect

**26** In the *Calculation Name* box, enter the name 'calcUseBy'.

Figure 7-13: Date Calculation Properties

- **27** From the *Source* drop down list, select *Date Offset from Claricom Database*. Leave the *Default Offset* as '0', as the offset date will be calculated from the use by date values present in the Database.
- **28** From the *Database Field* drop down list, select 'UseByOffset'. This is the name of the field in the database that we wish to link to. The date for each job will be calculated by adding the offset dates extracted from the database to the date specified in the *Reference date* drop down list (see Figure 7-13).
- **29** Click *OK*. The calculation name appears in the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box.

ate Calculation Manager	×
Supported Date Calculations	
calcUseBy	New
	Edit
	Remove
	Help
	ОК

Figure 7-14: Date Calculation Manager

**30** Click *OK* to close the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box. Click *OK* to close the *Date properties* dialog box. The 'Use By Date' field in the image design area changes its color to green, indicating that it is linked to a database.



Figure 7-15: Linked Use By date field

**31** Both the fields have been now linked to the database. Save the image.

*Note:* It is also possible to link directly to an explicit date in the database. To do this, choose the 'pre-calculated date from CLARiCOM Database' option from the 'Source' drop down list in the 'Date Calculation Properties' dialog box.

**32** Make sure that the *Database Viewer* Toolbar is visible by selecting *View* > *Database Viewer*.

The *Database Viewer* is enabled after the image is saved. There are two jobs in the database related to this CIFF reference. These job codes are listed in the *Database Viewer* drop down list.



Figure 7-16: Database Viewer

*Note:* The database viewer will only function correctly if the current CIFF file has been saved and matches a CIFF file name stored in the database.

**33** Select a job that references this CIFF file by selecting the first job code from the drop down list in the database viewer. Both the linked data fields, the 'dtUseBy' and the 'prcItemPrice' fields, are updated to reflect the corresponding values from the selected job.



Figure 7-17: Job Code 1

*Note:* The price values defined in the database are 50 and 35 respectively. Since we selected the format of the currency to two decimal places, CLARISOFT considers the last two digits in the database as the decimal values. Ensure that the format defined in the properties dialog box is the same as the format defined in the database. **34** Scroll between the records in the database using the left and right arrows in the job selector or select a specific record from the drop down list. Click on the right arrow of the 'job selector'. The next job in the database that references this CIFF file is displayed and the linked field values are updated. The jobs are displayed in the drop down list sorted in ascending job code order. The 'record number' indicates that this is the second job out of two available jobs in the database that references this CIFF file.



Figure 7-18: Second Job

# **Open Database Connectivity (ODBC)**

Similar to its ability to work with its own database, CLARiSOFT can also use any database that is ODBC compliant. Once CLARiSOFT is linked to the external ODBC database, the data fields can be managed in the same way.

### Linking CLARiSOFT to an external ODBC database

- 1 Open CLARiSOFT.
- **2** Navigate to *Tools* > *Options* > *Database Setup*.
- 3 Select User Specified Data Source under Where is my Database?.

CLARiSOFT Options	? ×
Editing General Printing Database Setu	JP Print Mode SSCC
Where is my database?	
	basev1\cr Browse
User Specified Data Source	
	Select
Table Containing Index Fields	
	·
Which field in the database does this m	ap to?
Unique Job Code	
CIFF Reference	~
Auxiliary CIFF Reference	
Job Code 1	· · ·
Job Code 2	
Job Code 3	
Primary Barcode	
Secondary Barcode	
Setup My Index Fields	Advanced Settings
OK Cancel	Apply Help

Figure 7-19: Linking to External Database

4 Click Select. The Data Link Properties dialog box appears.

Data Link Properties
Provider Connection Advanced All
Select the data you want to connect to:
OLE DB Provider(s)
Microsoft Jet 4.0 OLE DB Provider Microsoft OLE DB Provider for Indexing Service
Microsoft OLE DB Provider for ODBC Drivers
Microsoft OLE DB Provider for Oracle Microsoft OLE DB Provider for Search Microsoft OLE DB Provider for SQL Server Microsoft OLE DB Simple Provider
MSDataShape OLE DB Provider for Microsoft Directory Services
Next >>
OK Cancel Help

Figure 7-20: Data Link Properties - Provider

*Note:* The content of the data link property list is dependent on the drivers installed on the machine running CLARiSOFT. The following screens are dependent on the type of external ODBC database that is being connected.

**5** Select the required Database provider from the list. This needs to match the ODBC database that will be accessed. Click *Next*.

Data Link Properties
Provider Connection Advanced All
Specify the following to connect to ODBC data:
1. Specify the source of data:
Use data source name
▼ <u>R</u> efresh
Crisp
Connection string:
Build
2. Enter information to log on to the server
User name:
Password:
Black password Allow saving password
<ol><li>Enter the initial catalog to use:</li></ol>
▼
Test Connection
OK Cancel Help

Figure 7-21: Data Link Properties- Connection

- 6 Insert the connection details required to access the database on this screen.
- 7 Click on the *Test Connection* button. The message *Test Connection Succeeded* appears.
- 8 Click *OK*. The database link will appear in the *CLARiSOFT Options* dialog box. Click *OK*.
- **9** Select the required table containing job data from the drop down list *Table Containing Index Fields*.
- **10** As the column names in the external ODBC database may differ from CLARiSOFT database, perform mapping of columns by selecting the fields in the database from the drop down lists under *Which field in the database does this map to?*.

CLARISOFT Options	? ×
Editing General Printing Database Se	etup Print Mode SSCC
Where is my database?	
CLARISOFT Database	
C:\CLARICOMDATA\CrispsDemoDa	tabasev1\cr Browse
User Specified Data Source	
Provider=MSDASQL.1;Persist Securit Info=True;Data Source=crisps	Select Edit
Table Containing Index Fields	
JOBS	-
Which field in the database does this	map to?
Unique Job Code	ArticleNumber 🔹
CIFF Reference	Template1 -
Auxiliary CIFF Reference	Template2 -
Job Code 1	<disabled></disabled>
Job Code 2	<disabled></disabled>
Job Code 3	<disabled></disabled>
Primary Barcode	<disabled></disabled>
Secondary Barcode	<disabled></disabled>
Setup My Index Fields	Advanced Settings
OK Cancel	Apply

Figure 7-22: Options

**11** Click *OK*.

# Advanced Message Design

CLARiSOFT offers powerful message design features to increase assurance that printed codes are correct by minimizing, or restricting, the amount of operator-entered information. This chapter contains some advanced message design examples to demonstrate how to use these features.

# **User Entered Field- Pick List**

To increase Code Assurance, it may be beneficial for an operator to select an entry from a previously determined list. In the following example, we will create a pick list in CLARiSOFT. The operator, during job selection, will be prompted to select an option from the list according to the product being coded.

We will create two fields: the first a fixed text field stating 'Factory Location' and the second a pick list from which the operator will pick the factory location during job setup.

- 1 Open CLARiSOFT.
- 2 Click *File* > *New* to create a new image. Select the coder and image / size options as shown in Figure 8-1.



Figure 8-1: Select the Coder

3 Click OK.

- 4 Click on the *Text* tool in the toolbox. A text field is added to the image and the *Text Properties* dialog box appears.
- 5 In the *Default Text* box, enter the text 'Factory Location'.
- 6 In the *General* tab, name this text field 'txtFacLoc'.
- 7 Click *OK*. The first text field is displayed in the image design area.



Figure 8-2: Text Field-Factory Location

8 Create another text field which will be modified to supply the operator with a list of factory locations such as 'London', 'Texas' and 'Tokyo'.

Click on the Text tool in the toolbox. The Text Properties dialog box appears.

**9** Select *User List* from the *Type* drop down list. Leave the other parameters as shown in Figure 8-3.

Text Properties	×
Text Font General	
DefaultText	
Type Maximum	Number of Characters
User List 🔹 11	Fixed Length
Default Text	
DefaultText	
	International Data
Justification Pad Charact	ter
Left 🔹	List
User Entered Data	
Characters Allowed	
Any Characters 👻	
Prompt Message	
Prompt Value © <u>B</u> lank	💿 <u>L</u> ast Value
✓ Prompt at Coder	
Database Data Source	
Table Containing Index Fields	Select
Field to Use	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Add Field
Checksum Calculation	
NONE	•
Add charles in character to and of data	
<ul> <li>Insert checksum character at start of data</li> </ul>	a
ОК	Cancel Apply

Figure 8-3: Text Properties-User List

User List Type		
Fixed Text	•	
✓ User List Mask		
Data		
DefaultText		Add
		Edit
		Remove
		Move Up
		Move Down
User List Ids		
Database		
Data Source		Select
Field to Use		
	*	Add Field
	ОК	Cancel

**10** Click on the *List* button. The *User List* dialog box appears.

Figure 8-4: User List

- 11 Use this dialog box to enter the items for the pick list. Select *Default Text* in the list box under *Data* and click *Edit*.
- **12** The *Enter User List Text* dialog box appears. Enter the text 'London' and click *OK*.

Enter User List Text	<b>—</b> ×
London	ок
London	International Data
Enter the ID for the User List Entry	International Data

Figure 8-5: User List Text- London

**13** The User List dialog box displays the first location in the list.

User List		×
User List Type Fixed Text  User List Mask	]	
Data		
London		Add
		Edit_
		Remove
		Move Up
		Move Down
User List Ids		
Data Source		C la l
Field to Use		Select
		dd Field
	ОК	Cancel

Figure 8-6: User List

- **14** Click the *Add* button. The *Enter User List Text* dialog box appears. Enter the text 'Texas' and click *OK*.
- **15** The *User List* dialog box displays the second location in the list.
- **16** Click on *Add* button and enter 'Tokyo' in the *Enter User List Text* dialog box and click *OK*.

User List Type		
Fixed Text	•	
🔲 User List Mask		
Data		
London		Add
Tokvo		
Texas		Edit
		Permaye
		Tienove
		Move Up
		Maura Daura
		Move Down
User List Ids		
Database		
Data Source		
		Select
Field to Use		
		Add Field

17 The User List dialog box has now all three locations. Click OK.

Figure 8-7: Complete User List

**18** In the *Text Properties* dialog box, the default text is changed to 'London'; the first entry in the list. The text appears in the Print Preview also.

In the *Prompt Message* box, enter the text 'Select the Factory'. This message will be displayed during job selection.

ext Properties	×
Text Font General	
Preview	
London	
Type Maximu	m Number of Characters
User List   G	Fixed Length
Default Text	
London	
	International Data
Justification Pad Charae	cter
Liter Entered Data	List
Characters Allowed	
Any Characters 👻	
Promot Message	
Select the Factory	
Prompt Value	
Default Value     Default Value     Default Value	<u>Last Value</u>
✓ Prompt at Coder	
Database	
Table Containing Index Fields	Select
Field to Use	
	▼ Add Field
Checkey m Calculation	
NONE	
INCINE	•
Add checksum character to end of data	
<ul> <li>Insert checksum character at start of data</li> </ul>	ta
	Canad
OK	

Figure 8-8: Text Properties - Updated

**19** In the *General* tab, name this field as 'FacLoc'.



**20** Click *OK*. The image design area will appear as shown in Figure 8-9.

Figure 8-9: Image Design Area-Updated

- **21** Save the file as 'Pick List Example.ciff'.
- **22** Click *File* > *Print*.
- 23 Select Download under Image Options.
- 24 Select Current Image under Print What.
- **25** The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears. Verify that the preview is correct and click *OK*.

Job Selection Confirmation		3 ×
Please confirm that the following images contain the correct data .		
CLARISOFT Summary		
	Factory Location:London	A
CLARICOM Progradia Magneti Series		

Figure 8-10: Job Selection Confirmation

**26** The job download starts. CLARiSOFT displays the progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.

Progress	×
	*
Overall Progress	
Completed	
20	
CLARICOM	
Pusque Coder Municornen Spoons	
	-
	_
Detail	Close

Figure 8-11: Progress

**27** At the coder's user interface, touch the *Job* button. Select the job *Pick List Example* and touch *OK*.



Figure 8-12: Job Select

**28** The prompt message created in CLARiSOFT appears. Touch *Edit* to select the factory from the pick list.



Figure 8-13: Prompt Message during Job Selection

**29** The list of factories created in CLARiSOFT appears. Select *Tokyo* from the list and touch *OK*.



Figure 8-14: Select the Factory

**30** A tick mark appears showing that this user entered field has been completed. The factory location is changed to 'Tokyo' in the preview.



Figure 8-15: Job Select

**31** Touch *OK*. The print preview is displayed.



Figure 8-16: Job Preview

**32** Touch *OK*. The job is ready for printing.

## **Advanced Merge Fields**

In this example, we will create a merge field by concatenating two complete fields and a part of a third field. Refer to "Create a Merge Field" on page 4-21 for basic information on creating merge fields.

- 1 Open the file 'Pick List Example.ciff' created in section "User Entered Field-Pick List" on page 8-1.
- **2** In this example we will add a batch code to this message which will be in the format

**'Batch Code : YYJulXX'** where 'YY' is the current year, 'Jul' is the Julian Date' and 'XX' is the first two letters of the factory location.

We will create two new date fields 'year' and 'julian date' and concatenate them to the first two letters of the factory location.

**3** Click on the *Date* tool in the toolbox. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears. Select the date format as 'yy'.

Font Gene	ral
Preview 13	
Date Format	Separator
<b>√</b> <mark>yy</mark>	✓ None ✓ <u>A</u> dvanced
Date to Use	
<u>PC Date</u> Date Type	Oder Date Language
Current Date	✓ English ▼
Calculation to Use	
	▼ Calc Manager
Disabled Minimum Offset 0 Prompt Message	Maximum Offset
	🔿 Last Value 💦 Blank

Figure 8-17: Text Properties

4 In the *General* tab, name this field as 'Year' and select *Non-Printed* under *Features*.

- **5** Click *OK*. Drag and place this field off the image area to the right, in the orange area (see Figure 8-19).
- 6 Click on the *Date* tool. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears. Select date format 'JulDayz(060)'.

ext Font Gene	eral
Preview	
294	
Data Farmat	Commentan
Date Format	Separator Advanced
Date to Lies	
PC Date	Coder Date
Date Type	Language
Current Date	▼ English ▼
Calculation to Use	
	✓ Calc Manager
User Entered Date Minimum Offset Units	
Disabled	
Disabled Minimum Offset	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset	v Maximum Offset 0 ¢
Disabled Minimum Offset 0	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset 0 Prompt Message	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset 0 Prompt Message	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset 0 Prompt Message © Default Value	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset 0 Prompt Message 0 Default Value	Maximum Offset
Disabled Winimum Offset 0 Prompt Message	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset 0 Prompt Message © Default Value	Maximum Offset
Disabled Minimum Offset	Maxmum Offset 0 **
Desabled  Minimum Offset    Prompt Message  Default Value	Maxmum Offset 0 0

Figure 8-18: Text Properties

- 7 In the *General* tab, name this field as 'Julian' and select *Non-Printed* under *Features*.
- 8 Click *OK*. Drag and place this field off the image area to the right, in the orange area. The main screen should look like:



Figure 8-19: Image Design Area

**9** Create a text field with fixed text 'Batch Code' and name it as 'txtBatchCode'. Place this field below the 'txtFacLoc' field.

- **10** Create the merge field as follows. Click on the *Text* tool in the toolbox and place the text on the image design area to the right of the 'txtBatchCode' field.
- 11 In the *Text Properties* dialog box, select *Merge Field* from the *Type* drop down list. Click on *Merge* button.
- **12** The *Field Merger* dialog box appears. Click on each of the 'Year', 'Julian' and 'Facloc' fields in turn and click *Add* ->. Arrange the fields in order as shown in Figure 8-20 using the *Move Up* and *Move Down* buttons.

Preview 13294London			
Available Fields	5	elected Fields	_
FacLoc		Year	Move Up
Julian btBatchCode btFacLoc Year	Add -> <- Remove	Julian FacLoc	Move Down
Selection			

Figure 8-20: Field Merger

Concatenate the three fields together as follows. The text we want to print is 'YYJulXX'. The year and Julian Date fields are to be printed fully, but only the first two characters of the factory location field.

Select the field 'FacLoc' within *Selected Fields* list box. In the *Selection* box, select the first two letters of the factory location as shown below. A preview of the merged text appears in the *Field Merger* dialog box (see Figure 8-21).

Field Merger			×
Preview 13294Lo			
Available Fields	S	elected Fields	
FacLoc		Year	Move Up
Julian htPatchCode		Julian Factor	
btFacLoc	Add ->	ractoc	Move Down
Year	<- Remove		
	J [		
Selection			
Jeondon			
	Help	ОК	Cancel

Figure 8-21: Field Merger Preview

- **13** Click *OK* to close *Field Merger* dialog box. Click *OK* to close the *Text Properties* dialog box.
- **14** The merged field appears in the image design area.



Figure 8-22: Merged Field using a part of text field

## **Advanced Date Fields**

### **Date Offsets using Calculation Manager**

The following example shows how to setup date offsets using CLARiSOFT calculation manager.

- 1 Open CLARiSOFT.
- 2 Click *File* > *New*. Select the *Coder* as Videojet 1650 and set the *Select Format* as 12-high.
- 3 Click on the *Text* tool in the toolbox to create a text label 'Use By'. Call the field 'txtUseBy'.
- 4 Click *OK* to close the *Text Properties* dialog box. The image design area displays the text.

**5** Click on the *Date* tool in the toolbox. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears. Note that the current date appears, for the example it is 21/10/2013.

ext Font General	
Descrience	
21/10/2013	8
	-
Date Format	Separator
✓ dd/MM/yyyy	Forward Slash(/) ▼ <u>A</u> dvanced
Date to Use	
O PC Date	Coder Date
Date Type	Language
Calculated Date	- English -
Calculation to Use	
	Calc Manager
Minimum Offset	Maximum Offset
Prompt Message	
	Last Value 💮 Blank

Figure 8-23: Date Properties

- 6 Select *Calculated Date* from the *Date Type* drop down list and click *Calc Manager*. Click *New* in the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box.
- 7 Set an offset of 60 days from the current date. Enter the calculation name 'calcP+60' under *Calculation Name*. Select *Current Date* from the *Reference Date* drop down list and *Within Image* from the *Source* drop down list. This means the date calculation will be based on the current date.

8 Enter the *Default Offset* as '60' and *Units* as 'days'.

	Concessions   Rounding   Calendar Rules
Preview	
20 Dec 2013	
Calculation Name	Reference Date
calcP+60	Current Date 👻
Source	
Within Image	•
Automatically Default Offset	Units Days
Database	
Database — Data Source	▼ Select Source
Database Data Source  Database Field	v Select Source
Database Data Source Database Field	v Select Source     Add Field
Database Data Source Database Field Date Format	v Select Source     v Add Reid     Separator
Database Data Source Database Field Date Format	

Figure 8-24: Date Calculation Properties

- **9** Click *OK* to exit the *Date Calculation Properties* dialog box. Click *OK* to exit the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box and click *OK* to exit the *Date Properties* dialog box.
- **10** The offset date is displayed in the image design area. This date is 60 days after the current date (21/10/2013 in this example).



Figure 8-25: Updated Offset Date

11 Save this file as 'advanced date field example.ciff'.

#### **User Concessions**

User concession allows you to limit a range of dates that the operator can select from during job selection.

- 1 Open the file 'advanced date field example.ciff'.
- 2 Double click on the 'dtUseBy' field. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears.
- 3 Click Calc Manager. The Date Calculation Manager dialog box appears.
- 4 Select 'calcP+60' in the *Supported Date Calculations* box and click *Edit*. The *Date Calculation Properties* dialog box appears.
- **5** Click on the *User Concessions* tab. Click the check box *Allow User to change*.
- 6 Enter the *prompt message* 'Please Enter the Date'.
- 7 Set the *Minimum Offset Units* as *Days*. Set the *Minimum Offset* as -10 and *Maximum Offset* as 10.

By setting the minimum and maximum offsets, we allow the operator to only select a date in the range of 10 days before or after the calculated date.

te calculation Propertie		
Calculation User Conces	sions Rounding Calendar Rules	
Preview		
20 Dec 2013		
Calculation Name	Reference Date	
calcP+60	Current Date	~
User Concessions		
Allow User to change	e	
Prompt Message		
Please Enter The Date		
Minimum Offset Units		
Days		•
Minimum Offset	Maximum Offset	
-10	10	-
10 Dec 2013	30 Dec 2013	
10 000 2010	00000000	

Figure 8-26: Date Calculation Properties

8 Click *OK*. Click *OK* to close the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box and click *OK* to close the *Date Properties* dialog box.
**9** The image design area appears as shown below.



Figure 8-27: Updated Offset Date

- **10** Save the file.
- **11** Click *File > Print*.
- **12** Select *Download* under *Image Options*.
- **13** Select *Current Image* under *Print What*.
- 14 The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears. Verify that the preview is correct and click *OK*.
- **15** The job download starts. CLARiSOFT displays the progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.

**16** At the coder's user interface, touch the *Job* button. The updated job is shown in the job select list.



Figure 8-28: Job Select

- **17** Select the job and touch *OK*.
- **18** The prompt message created in CLARiSOFT appears.



Figure 8-29: Prompt Message

**19** Select the prompt message and touch *Edit*. The calendar Page appears. The only dates selectable are those that will fall within the range of -10 to +10 days of the calculated offset date.



Figure 8-30: User Concession example of selectable dates

**20** Select the required date.



Figure 8-31: Select the Required Date

**21** Touch *OK*.

**22** A tick mark appears with the prompt message. The preview is updated to reflect the selected date. Touch *OK*.

O CLARITY								
	RI	JNNI	NG	ų	×			
	Job Select+advanced date field example							
P	Please Enter The 18 Dec 2013	e Date						
			USE BS	18/12/2013				
	Cancel	E	dit	ОК				

Figure 8-32: Updated Date Field

**23** The print preview is displayed. Touch *OK*.



Figure 8-33: User Concession Example Preview

**24** The 'use by date' is updated and the job is ready for printing.

#### **Date Avoidance**

Date Avoidance blocks specific dates from being selected or calculated.

The following example explains how to set up 'Avoidance Dates' using CLARiSOFT and how the 'Avoidance Dates' are managed during job selection. We will use the CIFF file from the previous example.

**Note:** The file 'advance date field example.ciff' now has the date field set to a calculated offset of '60' days, but the operator can select a date from  $\pm 10$  days from the calculated date. In this example, we will block 25th December from being selected.

- 1 Open the file 'advanced date field example.ciff'.
- 2 Double click on the 'dtUseBy' field. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears.
- **3** The calculation name 'calcP+60' is present under *Calculation to Use*. Click *Calc Manager*. The *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box appears.
- 4 Select 'calcP+60' under *Supported Date Calculations* box and click *Edit*. The *Date Calculation Properties* dialog box appears.
- 5 Click the *Calendar Rules* tab.

	loncessio	ns   Rou	Inding	Jaiendar H	ules
Preview 20 Dec 2013					
Calculation Name			Referen	ce Date	
calcP+60			Curren	t Date	
Calendar Rules					
Calendar Rules	Offset	Date be	ecomes		Add
					Edit
					Remove
					Up
					Davia
					Down
Avoidance Dates					Add
Avoidance Dates					
Avoidance Dates					Edit
Avoidance Dates					Edit
Avoidance Dates					Edit Remove

Figure 8-34: Calendar Rules-Avoidance

6 Click the *Add* button to the right of *Avoidance Dates*.

7 Set the *Date to avoid* to '25' and 'December'.

-	Avoidance Date
	Date to avoid
	25 → December ▼
	OK Cancel

Figure 8-35: Calendar Rules-Avoidance Date

- 8 Click *OK*. Confirm the date set appears in the *Avoidance Date* data of the *Date Calculation Properties* dialog box.
- **9** Click *OK* to close the *Date Calculation Properties* dialog box and click *OK* to close *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box. Click *OK* to close the *Date Properties* dialog box.
- **10** Save the file.
- **11** Click *File > Print*.
- **12** Select *Download* under *Image Options*.
- 13 Select Current Image under Print What.
- 14 The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears. Verify that the preview is correct and click *OK*.
- **15** The job download starts. CLARiSOFT displays the progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.
- **16** At the coder's user interface, touch the *Job* button. The updated job is shown in the job select list.



Figure 8-36: Job Select

**17** Select the job and touch *OK*.

**18** The prompt message created in CLARiSOFT appears.

CLARITY					
	RI	JNNI	١G	ų	$\varkappa$
	🝺 Job Select+adva	•			
9	Please Enter The 20 Dec 2013	e Date			
			use By	20/12/2013	
	Cancel	Ed	lit	OK	:

Figure 8-37: Prompt Message

**19** Touch *Edit*. The calendar page appears. Note that the date '25th December' is in grey and cannot be selected.



Figure 8-38: Avoidance Date

#### **Date Rounding**

Allows the date fields to be rounded in a message to a particular day of the week, or round to a particular day of the month. We will use the CIFF file from the previous example to demonstrate how to round a selected or calculated date upto the next Monday.

1 Open the file 'advanced date field example.ciff'.

- 2 Double click on the 'dtUseBy' field. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears.
- **3** The calculation name 'calcP+60' is present under *Calculation to Use*. Click *Calc Manager*. The *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box appears.
- 4 Select 'calcP+60' under *Supported Date Calculations* box and click *Edit*. The *Date Calculation Properties* dialog box appears.
- **5** Click on the *Rounding* tab.

Date Calculation Properties	
Date Calculation Properties     Image: Calculation User Concessions     Rounding     Calculation Reference Date       Preview     23 Dec 2013     Calculation Name     Reference Date       Calculation Name     Reference Date     Current Date       Calculation Value     Current Date     Image: Calculation Value       Mode     Round Up     Image: Calculation Value       Weekdy     Interval     Image: Value Value       Weekdy     Monday     Image: Value Value Value       Tuesday     Wednesday     Tuesday	
vecnesoay Trunday Friday Saturday Sunday	
OK Cancel Apply Help	

Figure 8-39: Rounding

- 6 Select *Round Up* from the *Mode* drop down list to round to the next Monday.
- 7 Select *Weekly* from the *Frequency* drop down list.
- 8 Select *Monday* from the *Interval* drop down list.
- **9** Click *OK* to close the window. Click *OK* to close the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box and click *OK* to close the *Date Properties* dialog box.
- **10** Save the file.
- **11** Click *File > Print*.
- **12** Select *Download* under *Image Options*.
- **13** Select *Current Image* under *Print What*.
- 14 The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears. Verify that the preview is correct and click *OK*.
- **15** The job download starts. CLARiSOFT displays the progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.

**16** At the coder's user interface, touch the *Job* button. The updated job is shown in the job select list.



Figure 8-40: Job Select

- **17** Select the job and touch *OK*.
- **18** The prompt message created in CLARiSOFT appears.



Figure 8-41: Prompt Message

**19** Touch *Edit*. The calendar page appears. Only Mondays are now available for selection.



Figure 8-42: Selectable Dates from 'Date Rounding Example'

#### Calendar Rules

CLARiSOFT enables the user to define the rules to control dates that are calculated, selected and used.

The following example explains how to set up Calendar Rules in CLARiSOFT. We will use a date field linked to the database in a sample file, and then apply calendar rules to the date field to avoid any particular dates.

- 1 Open CLARiSOFT.
- **2** Click *Tools* > *Options*.
- **3** In the *Database Setup* tab, under *Where is my Database*? select *CLARiSOFT database*.
- 4 Click *Browse* and select 'CLARiSOFT-Sample.mdb' from the default directory. Click *OK*.
- 5 Open the file 'inner primary example1.ciff' from the default directory.
- 6 Save this file in another location (*File > Save As...*) without changing the name of the file. If the file name is changed, the database will no longer link to the CIFF file.

7 From the *Database Viewer*, select the job 'D004IRL'. The image design area is shown in Figure 8-43. The offset date calculated from the database is 16th November. We will create a calendar rule to automatically re-calculate the date to be one day before the original date.



Figure 8-43: Job Code D004IRL

- 8 Double click on the *date field* in the image design area. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears.
- **9** The calculation name 'USEBY' is present under *Calculation to Use*. Click *Calc Manager*. The *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box appears
- **10** Select 'USEBY' under *Supported Date Calculations* box and click *Edit*. The *Date Calculation Properties* dialog box appears.

11 Click on the *Calendar Rules* tab.

Date Calculation Properties	8 ×						
Calculation User Concessions Rounding Calendar Ru	Calculation User Concessions Rounding Calendar Rules						
Preview 16 Nov 2013							
Calculation Name Reference Date							
USEBY Current Date	*						
Calendar Rules							
Calendar Rules Offset Date becomes	Add						
	Edit						
	Remove						
	Up						
	Down						
Avoidance Dates							
	Add						
	Edit						
	Remove						
OK Cancel Apply	Help						

Figure 8-44: Date Calculation Properties: Calendar Rules

- **12** Click the *Add* button to the right of *Calendar Rules*.
- **13** Select the *Date to Change* to '16' and 'November'.

Calendar Rule	×
Preview 15 November	
Date to change	Offset
	OK Cancel

Figure 8-45: Set Calendar Rule

- **14** Set the *Offset* to -1 days. Note that the *Preview* displays the date '15 November'.
- **15** Click *OK*. The calendar rule is added in the box.

iculation User	Concessio	ns Rounding Calend	ar Rules
Preview			
22 Oct 2013			
Calculation Name	•	Reference Dat	te
USEBY		Current Date	· · ·
Calendar Rules			
Calendar Rules	Offset	Date becomes	Add
16 November	-1	15 November	Edit
			Remove
			Remove
			Remove Up
			Remove Up Down
Avoidance Dates			Remove       Up       Down
Avoidance Dates	1		Remove Up Down
Avoidance Dates	1		Remove       Up       Down       Add_       Edit_
Avoidance Dates	3		Remove       Up       Down       Add_       Edit_
Avoidance Dates	1		Remove       Up       Down       Add_       Edt.       Remove

If necessary, multiple rules can be added following similar steps.

Figure 8-46: Calendar Rule Added

- **16** We will now allow the user to change the dates using *User Concessions*. Click on the *User Concessions* tab.
- **17** Click the check box *Allow User to Change*. Insert the text 'Enter the Date' in the *Prompt Message* text box.

**18** Select *Days* from the *Minimum Offset Units* drop down list and set the *Minimum Offset* as -3 and *Maximum offset* as +3.

alculation	User Concessions	Rounding	Calendar Rules	
Preview 15 Nov 2	D13			
Calculation	Name	Refere	ence Date	
USEBY		Cum	ent Date	-
User Conc	essions			
Allow	User to change			
Prompt Me	ssage			
Enter the	Date			
Minimum C	ffset Units			
Days				-
Minimum C	lfset	Maxi	mum Offset	
-3		3		×
13 Nov 2	013	19	Nov 2013	

Figure 8-47: Set User Concession

- **19** Click *OK* to close the dialog box. Click *OK* to close the *Date Calculation Manager* dialog box and click *OK* to close the *Date Properties* dialog box.
- **20** The Image Design Area is updated to reflect the calendar rules applied.



Figure 8-48: Image Design Area

**21** Save the file.

- **22** Click *File > Print*.
- **23** Select *Download and Select* under *Image Options*. This will prompt for the variable information required by the job AT THE PC, and then download it to the coder as fixed text. If the job is subsequently selected at the coder, the variable information will not be prompted.
- **24** Click *Database Record* under *Print What* to tell CLARiSOFT to print a job from the CLARiSOFT database.

Print - F:\Inner Primary Example1.ciff	×
Printer Type	
Windows Printer	Real-Time Coder
Select Output Device	
Videojet (CLARiTY) VJ 1650	•
Enter Number of Prints Required	
0 Unlimited	
Image Options	
O Download	
Ownload and Select	
Print to File	
	<b>*</b>
Print What	
Current image File	2 Database Record
	Help Close

Figure 8-49: Print

25 The Select Job Code dialog box appears.

Select "JobCode1"			? x
Product control Decourt control Decourt control Decourt control Decourt control	AND	Carolyn Hyper Market Market Place Mega Market Super Market	×
		Search for:	
JobCode1	JobCode2	JobCode3	UniqueJobCode

Figure 8-50: Select Job Code

**26** In the following example we will print job D004IRL from the database. View the associated record in *CLARiSOFT database manager* (see Figure 8-51).

📜 CLARISOFT Da	tabase Manager									
File Edit Iools Help										
🗋 🗳 🐜 🖋	)* )/ jK 🗎	8 4 5	?							
UniqueJobCode	JobCode1	JobCode2	JobCode3	Packed In	Description	SellByOffset	UseByOffset	CIFFReference	PrimaryPackCode	Price
D001UK	Mega Market	Rice	250g		UK 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	longtext.ciff	0501234678909	£0.99
D002UK	Mega Market	Rice	500g		UK 500g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E	0504561237894	£1.80
D003IRL	Mega Market	Rice	250g		IRL 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501234678909	
D003UK	Super Market	Salmon Fillets	500g	UK	UK 500g Salmo	005/00/00	010/00/00	Inner Primary E		£5.10
D004IRL	Mega Market	Rice	500g		IRL 500g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E	0504561237894	0
FP0001	Carolyn	Flapjack	100g		Carolyn's Flapja	000/00/00	012/00/00	FlapjackPrimary		0
M001UK	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	500g		UK 500g Chick	009/00/00	010/00/00	Inner Primary E	0509876543210	£1.80
M002UK	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	750g		UK 750g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501236547890	£2.70
M003IRL	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	500g		IRL 500g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary E	0509876543210	
M004IRL	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	750g		IRL 750g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501236547890	

Figure 8-51: Sample Database- Job Code D004IRL

**27** Following the database record, double click on *Mega Market* to select *Job Code 1*.

Select "JobCode2"			2 ×
BORNE COMPANY	Manual Stream	Cheese Coleslaw Chocolate Ice Cream Frozen Carrots Frozen Peas Frozen Sweetcorn Lasagne Potato Salad Ravioli Rice Strawberry Ice Cream Waldalf Salad	×
		Search for:	
JobCode 1 Mega Market	JobCode2	JobCode3	UniqueJobCode
		Previous Next	Cancel Help

Figure 8-52: Select Job Code '2'

- **28** From the *Job Code 2* list, select *Rice*.
- **29** From the *Job Code 3* list, select *500g*.

**30** From the *UniqueJobCode* list, select *D004IRL*.

Select "UniqueJobCo	de"		8 ×
Production Control		D002UK D004IRL	*
		Search for:	
JobCode 1 Mega Market	JobCode2	JobCode3	UniqueJobCode
		Previous Finish	Cancel Help

Figure 8-53: Select 'UniqueJobCode'

**31** Click *Finish*. The *Variable Data Entry* dialog box appears.

Variable Data Entry	×
To change the following data double To accept the data - ensure that the	-click on the field that you wish to change tick box to the left has a tick in it
Prompt	Data
CLARISOFT: Enter the Date	
Help	Ok Cancel

Figure 8-54: Variable Data Entry

**32** Double click on the prompt message. The calendar page is displayed.

erthe D	ate						ОК
y bold d	ates are	e allow	ed				Cancel
•		No	vemt	oer 2	013		•
	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat	Sun
					1	2	3
		5	6	7	8	9	10
45	4						
45 46	4	12	13	14	15	16	17
45 46 47	4 11 18	12 19	<b>13</b> 20	<b>14</b> 21	15 22	<b>16</b> 23	17 24

Figure 8-55: User-entered Date Offset Field- Calendar

**33** Select the date '16 November'. Click *OK*. The following message is displayed.



Figure 8-56: Calendar Rule Warning

**34** Click *OK*. The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears. The date in the preview is changed to 15 November based on the calendar rule set.

Job Se	election Confirmation
Plea	ase confirm that the following images contain the correct data .
UI	ARISOFT Summary
	IRL 5009 Rice USE BY: 15 11 2013
( C	CLARICOM Nicige Code Mugement Servers

Figure 8-57: Job Selection Confirmation

- **35** Click *OK* to close the preview.
- **36** The job download starts. CLARiSOFT displays the progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.

**37** The selected job appears in the home page of the coder's user interface.



Figure 8-58: Home Page

#### Automated Management of Avoidance Dates

CLARiSOFT and the coder manage both the avoidance date and calendar rules when a date is selected automatically.

**38** This is an example of the image design area within CLARiSOFT when an automatically generated date does not conform to the calendar rules. The invalid field changes to red. Place the cursor over the date field and the cause of the error is shown.



Figure 8-59: Avoidance Date in Image Design Area

**39** If the warning is ignored and the job is downloaded to the coder, the job preview screen will display no date.

Job Selection Confirmation
Please confirm that the following images contain the correct data .
CLARISOFT Summary
Unique Jobcode: on CLARiSOFT
IRL 5009 Rice USE BY:
CLARICOM Pricine Coart Hangarent Seren

Figure 8-60: Job Selection Confirmation

**40** If the job is downloaded to the coder, the user interface displays the fault message *FAULT* (*E1243*) *Invalid Job File - Avoidance Date*.

O CLARITY	FAU		1243) Invalid Job File - Av	voidance Date	
	🔓 Home	D004IRL		10:34 22/	10/2013
	JOB	IRL USE	.5009 Rice BY:		
	Performar	nce		Consumable	es
	Throug	hput	0p/m	Makeup	Ink
	Batch (	Count	0		Ш
$\diamondsuit$	Total C	ount	13677	100%	100%

Figure 8-61: Fault Display

**41** Touch on the fault display in the status bar. Touch the '>' button to the right of the fault details.



Figure 8-62: Fault List

**42** A description of the fault is displayed.



Figure 8-63: Fault Description

**43** Follow the instructions given in the description to clear the fault. Open CLARiSOFT and make the required changes to the message to avoid the 'avoidance date'.

### **Arabic Dates**

The following example shows the procedure to create and select dates in the user interface language and print it in Arabic characters.

- 1 Open CLARiSOFT.
- 2 Select the *Coder* as Videojet 1650 and *Select Format* as '12-high'.
- 3 Click on the *Text* tool in the toolbox. The *Text Properties* dialog box appears.
- 4 Select *Fixed Text* from the *Type* drop down list and enter the text 'Use By' in the default text box.
- 5 In the *Font* tab, select the font as *12-high international*.
- 6 In the *General* tab, name this field as 'txtUseBy' and click OK.
- 7 Click on the *Date* tool in the toolbox. The *Date Properties* dialog box appears.
- 8 Select *User Entered Date* from the *Date Type* drop down list.
- 9 Set the *Minimum Offset* as 'zero' days and *Maximum Offset* as '3' days.
- **10** Enter the *Prompt Message* as 'Select the Date'.

>
Separator
Forward Slash(/)
Coder Date
Language
- English -
- Calc Manager
Maximum Offset
20 OCT 2013
Last Value 🔘 <u>B</u> lank

Figure 8-64: Date Properties

- 11 In the *Font* tab, select the font as *12-high international*.
- **12** In the *General* tab, name this field as 'dtUseBy'.



**13** Click *OK*. The image design area appears as follows.

Figure 8-65: Image Design Area

- 14 To change the date so that it appears in Arabic, double click on the *date field* and click on the *General* tab on the *Date Properties* dialog box.
- **15** From the drop down list under *Encrypted Field*, select *CLARiTY.Encryption.Arabic*.

Y Position (n	m)	
Y Position (n	vm)	
Y Position (n	vm)	
Y Position (n 0.00	vm)	
0.00		
Height (mm)		
2.50		
🔿 Non-Pri	nted	
	•	
	-	
N ms.BBEGroup2 ms.Arabic		
ms.Hebrew ms.BBEGroup1		
code		
ns.88EGroup4		
	N Non-Pris Na BBEGroup2 ma.Arabic ma.BBEGroup2 Dode ma.BBEGroup3 ma.BBEGroup3 Ma.BBEGroup3 Ma.BBEGroup3	Jgen-Printed      Jgen-Printed      Nn     BBEGroup2     ms.Arabic     mm.BBEGroup2     ms.BBEGroup1     Gode     GetSGroup3      OK Cancel

Figure 8-66: Encryption

**16** Click on the *Text* tab and select the correct regional language from the *Language* drop down list. (*Arabic - Egypt* is selected for the example).



17 Click *OK*. The image design area displays the date field in Arabic.

Figure 8-67: Encryption

- **18** Save the file as 'arabic example.ciff'.
- **19** Click *File > Print*.
- **20** Select *Download* under *Image Options*.
- **21** Select *Current Image* under *Print What*.
- **22** The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears. Verify that the preview is correct and click *OK*.
- **23** The job download starts. CLARiSOFT displays the progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.

**24** At the coder's user interface, touch the *Job* button. Select the job 'arabic example' and touch *OK*.



Figure 8-68: Job Select

25 The prompt message created in CLARiSOFT appears. Touch *Edit*.



Figure 8-69: Prompt Message

**26** The calendar in the standard Gregorian format appears. Select the required date (19 in this example) and touch *OK*.

CLARITY							X
		F	RUN	NIN	G	ų	×
	Job S	Select→a	rabic exa	ample→S	elect the	e Date	•
	4		0	ct 20	13		⊳
	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat	Sun
		1	2	3	4	5	6
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
	28	29	30	31			
		Canc	el			ОК	

Figure 8-70: Select the Date

- **27** A tick mark appears with the prompt message. The preview is updated to reflect the selected date. Touch *OK*.
- **28** The print preview is displayed with the selected date in Arabic. Touch *OK*.



Figure 8-71: Job Preview

**29** The job is ready to be printed with Arabic dates.

## **Transmitted Fields**

Transmitted fields are unique string commands that are transmitted to the RS232 serial port of the coder where available.

The data can be transmitted in two different modes which is setup in CLARiTY Configuration Manager for the coder:

- Each Print (data will be sent to RS232 serial port each time the job is printed).
- Every Job select (data will be sent to RS232 serial port each time the job is selected).

The data can then be used as required. For example, the job weight can be sent to a checkweigher to validate that the weight printed on the product is correct or to a validation scanner to confirm that the barcode printed matches the input data.

The following example creates a transmitted field for a Microscan Validation Scanner.

#### Note: Only one transmitted field is allowed per job.

- 1 Open CLARiSOFT.
- 2 Click *File* > *New* to create a new image. Select the coder as VJ2360 and the image width as '350 mm'.
- **3** Save this file as 'Secondary Example2.ciff' in another location to avoid overwriting the existing sample CIFF file. Do not change the name, as this CIFF File is referenced in the database.
- 4 The first field in the transmitted field represents the 'Scanner Control Header' that tells the specific microscan validation scanner to prepare to receive barcode data to store and read for that message. Click on the *Text* tool in the toolbox and click on the image design area. The *Text Properties* dialog box appears.
- 5 In the *Default Text* box, enter the header syntax '<K231,1,'.
- 6 Set the *font size* to '25' in *Font* tab.
- 7 In the *General* tab, name this field as 'Header'. Select *Non-Printed* under *Features*. Click *OK*.



8 Click *OK*. Move the text field off the image design area as shown below.

Figure 8-72: Header Field

- **9** The second field will represent the control trailer that the scanner understands as the end of the serial string command. Create another *Text Field* having default text '>' and font size 25. Name this field 'Trailer' and set the feature as *Non-Printed* in the *General* tab. Click *OK*.
- **10** Move this field off the image as shown below.



Figure 8-73: Trailer Field

- 11 The third field represents the data that the barcode will contain. It will also form the part of the serial string command between the header and trailer that tells the scanner the data that the barcode should contain for the duration of the printed job.
- 12 Create another *Text Field* by selecting *CLARiSOFT Database from* the *Text Type* drop down list. Select *Secondary Case Code* from the *Field to Use* drop down list. This field in the database contains the numbers for shipping container code for the secondary job.
- **13** Name this field 'Data' in the *General* tab and select *Non-Printed* under *Features*. Click *OK*.

14 Move the field off the image design area as shown below.



Figure 8-74: Data Field

- **15** Now we will merge the three fields we created to form the complete serial string command. This will be the 'Transmitted Field' that is sent to the scanner.
- **16** Create a *Text Field* and select *Merged Field* from the *Type* drop down list in the *Text Properties* dialog box.
- **17** Click *Merge*. In the *Field Merger* dialog box, select all the three fields we created and click *OK*.

kvalable Fields		Selected Fields	
Outa Nexder		Header Data	Move Up
Traker	Add +	Trailer	Wiley Dis-
	C-Renove		

Figure 8-75: Merged Field

**18** In the *General* tab, under *Features*, click *Transmitted Field*. This will activate this field and its contents as the output from the printer through its serial port to the scanner once this message is loaded in the printer.

Text Foot General		
ion form		
Field Name		
txtiransmitted		
Position and Size		
X Position (mm)	Y Position (mm)	
20.00	20.00	
Width (mm)	Height (mm)	
17.35	3.95	
Orientation (Degrees)		
0 -		
Drinted	Non Drinked	
. Entred	O Bout-times	
Field Inverse		
Field Mirror Image		
Transmitted Field		
CLARINET Logged Field		
Field Not Logged	•	
Encrypted Field		
NONE	•	

Figure 8-76: Transmitted Field Setting

19 Click OK. Move this field off the image design area as shown below.



Figure 8-77: Transmitted Field

- **20** The next field is the actual barcode that the printer will print. Click on the *Secondary Barcode* tool in the toolbox and click on the image design area.
- **21** Select *ITF* from the list of *Secondary Barcodes*. Click *OK*.
- **22** In the *ITF Properties* dialog box, select *Merge Field* from the *Type* drop down list.

- 23 Click Merge.
- **24** Select the field *Data* from the available fields and click *Add*.
- **25** Click *OK*.
- **26** Choose the *Magnification*, *Human Readable Style* and *Barcode Features* that match the standard symbology. Uncheck the *Automatically Calculate Check Digit* box.
- **27** Click *OK*.
- **28** Position the bar code in the image design area.

Figure 8-78: Barcode Data

**29** Save the file as 'Transmitted Field example.ciff'.

The printer will send the transmitted field to the scanner when the job is loaded. The scanner then matches the code that is printed with the transmitted field and ensures code matching.

Note that the coder will need to be correctly configured to send the transmitted field on the correct serial port number and required serial port parameters. Refer to the coder manual for details.

# CLARiSOFT Print Manager

CLARiSOFT Print Manager is a standalone application that enables an operator to select an existing image file and download it to a coder without the ability to change the message structure / content. This avoids the risk of accidental changes to the images or templates in CLARiSOFT.

The CLARiSOFT Print Manager supports user-entered data and database fields if the job includes them.

# Starting CLARiSOFT Print Manager

*Note:* CLARiSOFT Print Manager and CLARiSOFT cannot run in parallel on the same PC. Close CLARiSOFT before opening CLARiSOFT Print Manager.

Open 'CLARiSOFT Print Manager'. The following screen is displayed.

CLARISO	FT Print Manage	er				×
Log in	Next Job	Settings	) Printer	( History	About	
CL/	) ARisc	OFT				Next Job

Figure 9-1: CLARiSOFT Print Manager

#### CLARiSOFT Print Manager Tool Bar



Table 9-1: CLARiSOFT Print Manager Tool Bar

ΤοοΙ	Description
Next Job	Next Job: Selects the next job for printing or downloading to the coder.
<b>Settings</b>	<ul> <li>Settings:</li> <li>1. Database Setup: Allows the user to specify the source: CLARISOFT Database, or an External ODBC Database.</li> <li>2. Language Selection: Selects the User Interface Language.</li> </ul>
Printer	<ol> <li>Printer:         <ol> <li>Printing: Selects a coder to connect to the Print Manager.</li> <li>Communications: Allows the user to enter the network communication details.</li> <li>General: Allows the user to select the Job selection method, set the print quality, select the Job selection functionality and set the CIFF Reference field.</li> <li>Print Mode: Allows the user to set the print mode (Batch or Sequence).</li> <li>SSCC: Allows the user to configure SSCC information for valid coders only.</li> </ol> </li> </ol>
History	History: Allows the user to view the history of jobs downloaded for printing and changes to the CLARiSOFT Print Manager.
About	About: Allows the user to view the software version number.

Table 9-1: CLARiSOFT Print Manager Tool Bar

# **Configuring Print Manager**

#### Printing a Job using Print Manager and CIFF files

The following procedure explains how to print a job using the CLARiSOFT Print Manager. We will use a Videojet 1650 coder to print the job.

- 1 Click the *Log in* tool from the toolbar.
- **2** Enter the Username and Password supplied by your administrator and click *Login*.

User Log	jin: Not logged in.	×
Userna	me	
	Administrator	
Passwo	ord	
	•••••	
	Login	
Se	tup	Cancel

Figure 9-2: LogIn

3 Click the *Settings* button to configure the database source that CLARiSOFT Print Manager uses. Under *Where is my Database?*, select *CLARiSOFT Database*, to link to the CLARiSOFT database, if required. Select User *Specified Data Source*, if the database is an external ODBC one.

ettings	2 ×
Database Setup Language Selection	n
Where is my database? —	
CLARISOFT Database	
C:\CLARICOMDATA\CLARiSOF	T-Sample.mdb Browse
O User Specified Data Source	
Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.	.0;Password=""; Select
	Edit
Table Containing Index Fields	
JOBS	<b>v</b>
Which field in the database does	this map to?
Unique Job Code	UniqueJobCode 🔹
CIFF Reference	CIFFReference
Auxiliary CIFE Beference	
Job Code 1	
Job Code 7	
JOD CODE 2	
Job Lode 3	JobCode3 V
Primary Barcode	PrimaryPackCode 🔻
Secondary Barcode	SecondaryCaseCode 🔹 👻
Setup My Index Fields	Advanced Settings
OK Can	cel Apply Help

*Figure 9-3: Database Setup* 

- 4 Click the *Language Selection* tab and click *Change* tab to change the language if required.
- 5 Click OK.

6 Select the Coder that will be used for printing. Click the *Printer* button. Under *Select Printer* option, select the required coder model. In this example, as we are using VJ1650, select *Videojet* > *CLARiTY* > *VJ1650*.

Settings	? ×
Printing Communications General Print Mode SSC	cc
Select Printer	
	×
Vorking Directory	Browse_
OK Cancel Appl	y Help

*Figure 9-4: Select Printer* 

7 Using the *Browse* button, select the working directory where the CIFF files are stored. CLARiSOFT Print Manager will use this location to load the job files.
8 Click on *Communications* tab.

Printing	Communications	General Print Mo	de SSCC	
Commu	unication Settings			
🔘 Use	e Serial Port Commu	unications		
		Port		-
		Baud Rate	9600	-
		Parity	None	-
		Data Bits	8	-
		Stop Bits	1	-
		Handshaking	None	-
0	se TCP/IP Commu	nications		
00	IPAddress	e.g. 192.0.0.100)	127.0.0.	1
		Port	3001	

Figure 9-5: Communications

**9** If the coder is connected via serial port, enter the *port number*, *baud rate* and other details as required.

If the printer is connected using a TCP/IP network, enter the *IP address* of the printer that is being connected. Enter the *port number* (For further information, refer to your Coder Documentation).

**10** To configure the method of job selection, click on the *General* tab and select the *Job selection method* as *File Based*. Select the *Job Selection Functionality* as *Download without selecting*.

Settings
Printing Communications General Print Mode SSCC
Job selection method
File Based
Database Record
Print Quantity
Fixed Print Quantity     -1
O Allow user to modify as Job Selection
Job Selection Functionality
Select the image after downloading
Download without selecting
Prompt at Job Selection
User-entered Data Confirmation
Force confirmation of user-entered data
Ciff Reference field to use
CIFF Reference
OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 9-6: General Settings

- **11** Click *OK*.
- **12** Click the *Next Job* button. CLARiSOFT Print Manager displays the *Connecting* dialog box.



Figure 9-7: Connection Status

**13** Once the connection is established, CLARiSOFT Print Manager prompts the job to be selected from the working directory. Select the job 'Pick List Example.ciff' and click *Open*.

14 The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears. Verify that the preview is correct and click *OK*.

Job Selection Confirmation		8 ×
Please confirm that the following images contain the correct data .		
CLARISOFT Summary		
	Factory Location:London	^
CLARICOM New Colle Program Barry		

Figure 9-8: Job Selection Confirmation

**15** The job download starts. CLARiSOFT Print Manager displays the progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.

Progress	×
Overall Progress	*
Completed	
CLARICOM Préage Coding Hiragement Stations	
Detail	Close

Figure 9-9: Progress

**16** At the coder's user interface, touch the *Job* button. Select the job *Pick List Example* and touch *OK*.



Figure 9-10: Job Select

**17** The prompt message defined in CLARiSOFT appears. Touch *Edit* to select the factory from the pick list.



Figure 9-11: Prompt Message during Job Selection

**18** The list of factories created in CLARiSOFT appears. Select *Tokyo* from the list and touch *OK*.

CLARITY		
	RUNNIN	G ₹ 🕺
	Pick List Example→Sele	ct the Factory
	London	
$\mathbf{O}$	Texas	
	<b>√</b> Tokyo	
	Cancel	OK

Figure 9-12: Select the Factory

**19** A tick mark appears showing that this user entered field has been completed. The factory location is changed to 'Tokyo' in the preview.



Figure 9-13: Job Select

**20** Touch *OK*. The print preview is displayed.



Figure 9-14: Job Preview

**21** Touch *OK*. The job is ready for printing.

#### Printing a Job Linked to a Database

CLARiSOFT Print Manager can be used to print CIFF files where the data are connected to a database.

In this example, we will print a sample CIFF file ('Inner Primary Example1.ciff') supplied with CLARiSOFT.

- 1 Click the *Log in* tool from the toolbar.
- **2** Enter the Username and Password supplied by your administrator and click *Login*.
- 3 Click the *Settings* button to configure the database source that CLARiSOFT Print Manager uses. Under *Where is my Database?*, select *CLARiSOFT Database*, to link to the CLARiSOFT database. Select User Specified Data *Source*, if the database is an external ODBC one.

4 Click *Browse* and select *CLARiSOFT - sample.mdb* from the default directory or choose the relevant ODBC connection to use (refer to "Linking CLARiSOFT to an external ODBC database" on page 7-17).

Settings	? <u>x</u>
Otabase Setup Language Selection     Where is my database?     OCLARISOFT Database	
C:\CLARICOMDATA\CLARiSOFT	-Sample.mdb Browse
User Specified Data Source	
Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0 Data Source=C:\CLARICOMDATA	);Password=""; A Edit
Table Containing Index Fields JOBS	~
Which field in the database does t	his map to?
Unique Job Code	UniqueJobCode 👻
CIFF Reference	CIFFReference -
Auxiliary CIFF Reference	AuxCIFFReference 👻
Job Code 1	JobCode1 👻
Job Code 2	JobCode2 👻
Job Code 3	JobCode3 👻
Primary Barcode	PrimaryPackCode 👻
Secondary Barcode	SecondaryCaseCode 🔹
Setup My Index Fields	Advanced Settings
OK Cance	el <u>A</u> pply Help

Figure 9-15: Settings

- **5** Click the *Language Selection* tab and click *Change* tab to change the language if required.
- 6 Click OK.

7 Select the Coder that will be used for printing. Click the *Printer* button.Under *Select Printer* option, select the required coder model. In this example, as we are using VJ1650, select *Videojet* > *CLARiTY* > *VJ1650*.

Settings	? ×
Printing	Communications General Print Mode SSCC
Select	Printer
	- Wdeojet 2360         ▲           - VJ6210 (Basic Driver)         -           - VJ6220 (Basic Driver)         -           - VJ6220 (Basic Driver)         -           - VJ6220 (Full Driver)         -           - VJ6220 (Full Driver)         -           - VJ6220 (Basic Driver)         -           - VJ6200 (Basic Driver)         -           - VJ2120 (Full Driver)         -           - VJ1500         -           - VJ1650         -           - VJ1650 UHS         ▼
C:\C	g Directory LARICOMDATA Browse_
	OK Cancel Apply Help

Figure 9-16: Select Printer

8 Click on *Communications* tab.

Printing	Communications	General Print N	Node SSCC
Commu	unication Settings		
🔘 Use	e Serial Port Commu	unications	
		Por	t 🖉 👻
		Baud Rate	9600 💌
		Parity	None 💌
		Data Bits	s 8 💌
		Stop Bits	s 1 👻
		Handshaking	None 👻
0	se TCP/IP Commun	nications	
	IPAddress	e.g. 192.0.0.100	) 127.0.0.1
		Port	3001

Figure 9-17: Communications

**9** If the coder is connected via serial port, enter the *port number, baud rate* and other details as required.

If the printer is connected using a TCP/IP network, enter the *IP address* of the printer that is being connected. Enter the port number (For further information, refer to your Coder Documentation).

**10** To configure the method of job selection, click on the *General* tab and select the *Job selection method* as *Database Record*. Select the *Job Selection Functionality* as *Download without selecting* 

11 Select *CIFFReference* under *Ciff Reference field to use* or choose the database field name that contains the CIFF file name.

Settings	? ×
Printing Communications General Print Mode SSCC	
Job selection method	
File Based	
Database Record	
Print Quantity	
Fixed Print Quantity     -1	A V
Allow user to modify as Job Selection	
Job Selection Functionality	
Select the image after downloading	
Ownload without selecting	
Prompt at Job Selection	
User-entered Data Confirmation	
Force confirmation of user-entered data	
Ciff Reference field to use	
CIFF Reference	
OK Cancel <u>A</u> pply	Help

Figure 9-18: Job Selection Method

- **12** Click *OK*.
- **13** Click the *Next Job* button. The *Select Job Code* dialog box appears.
- 14 Following the database record for *Job Code 1*, double click on *Mega Market*.

Select "JobCode1"			₿ <mark>×</mark>
Promotion United States	And	Carolyn Hyper Market Market Place Mega Market Super Market	*
		Search for:	
JobCode1	JobCode2	JobCode3	UniqueJobCode
		Previous Next	Cancel Help

Figure 9-19: Select Job Code 1

- **15** From the *Job Code 2* list, select *Rice*.
- **16** From the *Job Code 3* list, select *500g*.

**17** From the *UniqueJobCode* list, select *D002UK*.

Select "UniqueJobCoo	le"		8 ×
Product of the second s	DM summer war of a	D002UK D004IRL	*
		Search for:	
JobCode1 Mega Market	JobCode2	JobCode3	UniqueJobCode
		Previous Finish	Cancel Help

Figure 9-20: Select Job Code

**18** Click *Finish*. The *Job Selection Confirmation* dialog box appears. Verify that the preview is correct and click *OK*.

Job Selection Confirmation
Please confirm that the following images contain the correct data .
CLARiSOFTPM Summary
Unique Jobcode: on CLARISOFTPM
UK 5009 Rice
CLARICOM Program forem

Figure 9-21: Job Selection Confirmation

**19** The job download starts. CLARiSOFT Print Manager displays the progress. Click *Close* when the download is complete.

Progress	X
	A
Overall Progress	
Completed	
20	
CLARICOM	
Parkage Coding Hanagement Systems	
	-
Detail	Close

Figure 9-22: Progress

**20** At the coder's user interface, touch the *Job* button. The transferred image appears in the job select list.



Figure 9-23: Job Select

**21** Select the job and touch *OK*. The selected job appears in the home page and is ready to be printed.

CLARITY				
	F	RUNNING	ų	$\varkappa$
	🕞 Home		08:27 22/	/10/2013
		JK 5009	9 Ri	ce
	Performance		Consumab	les
	Throughput	0p/m	Makeup	Ink
	Batch Count	0		L
	Total Count	13677	100%	100%

Figure 9-24: Home Page

# CLARiSOFT Database Manager

# 10

## **CLARiSOFT** Database Manager

CLARiSOFT Database Manager enables the user to create new and manage existing CLARiSOFT databases such as adding, deleting or modifying records.

CLARiSOFT Database Manager uses a specific database structure which must not be modified. It is possible to read and write to files created by CLARiSOFT Database Manager (it uses Microsoft Access .MDB format) however if the structure is not maintained, the database will no longer be compatible with CLARiSOFT Database Manager and will be rejected.

CLARiSOFT Database manager files may be read, and subsequently used by other programs, however CLARiSOFT Database Manager is unable to edit, or import, any type of existing database. If this is required, use ODBC to link CLARiSOFT to the database.

#### **Opening the CLARiSOFT Database Manager**

- 1 Open CLARiSOFT Database Manager.
- **2** You will be prompted to enter a *Password*. Enter the password.

Note: The default password is 'admin'.



Figure 10-1: Enter Password

**3** The sample database is opened by default.

📜 CLARISOFT Da	tabase Manager								
<u>File Edit Tool</u>	s <u>H</u> elp								
🗋 🚔 🐜 豨	▶* ▶ <b>/ ⋈</b> 🗎	) 🖻   🎒   🚰	ę						
UniqueJobCode	JobCode1	JobCode2	JobCode3	Description	SellByOffset	UseByOffset	CIFFReference	PrimaryPackCode	Price
D001UK	Mega Market	Rice	250g	UK 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	longtext.ciff	0501234678909	£0.99
D002UK	Mega Market	Rice	500g	UK 500g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E	0504561237894	£1.80
D003IRL	Mega Market	Rice	250g	IRL 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501234678909	
D004IRL	Mega Market	Rice	500g	IRL 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E	0504561237894	
FP0001	Carolyn	Flapjack	100g	Carolyn's Flapja	000/00/00	012/00/00	FlapjackPrimary		0
M001UK	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	500g	UK 500g Chick	009/00/00	010/00/00	Inner Primary E	0509876543210	£1.80
M002UK	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	750g	UK 750g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501236547890	£2.70
M003IRL	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	500g	IRL 500g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary E	0509876543210	
M004IRL	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	750g	IRL 750g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501236547890	
M005UK	Market Place	Chicken Korma	500g	UK 500g Chick	010/00/00	012/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501239874566	£1.80
M006UK	Market Place	Chicken Korma	750g	UK 750g Chick	011/00/00	013/00/00	Inner Primary E	0503124659784	£2.70
M007IRL	Market Place	Chicken Korma	500g	IRL 500g Chick	010/00/00	012/00/00	Inner Primary E	0501239874566	
S001UK	Mega Market	Lasagne	250g	UK 250g Lasag	001/00/00	002/00/00	Inner Primary E	5078888881238	£0.99
S002UK	Mega Market	Lasagne	500g	UK 500g Lasag	002/00/00	003/00/00	Inner Primary E	507777771237	£1.80
SOOGUK	Mega Market	Bavioli	250a	UK 250g Bavioli	003/00/00	004/00/00	Inner Primary E	507666661236	20.99

Figure 10-2: Sample Database

#### **CLARiSOFT Database Manager Toolbar**



Figure 10-3: Database Manager Toolbar

Tool	Description
D	<b>New:</b> Creates a new database using a wizard or an existing template.
<b>É</b>	<b>Open:</b> Opens an existing database
0w	<b>Login:</b> Login to CLARiSOFT Database. The button is disabled when you are logged in.
*	<b>Logout:</b> Logout from CLARiSOFT. The button is disabled when you are logged out.
▶*	Add New Record: Add a new record (a record is the name of a row or job) to the opened database.

Table 10-1: CLARiSOFT Database Manager Tool Bar

Tool	Description
•1	Edit Record: Edit the current record in the opened database.
₩	<b>Delete Records:</b> Delete the current record from the database.
	<b>Copy Record:</b> Copy the current record in the opened database.
R	<b>Paste Record:</b> Paste the copied record into the opened database. This button becomes enabled when you copy a record.
4	<ul> <li>Print: Allows the user to print selected fields from the current database to a Windows printer.</li> <li>Note: The printing options must be setup in <i>File &gt; Print</i> before printing.</li> </ul>
	<b>Set-up Database Properties:</b> Configure the database structure (eg- field length, order etc).
?	About CLARiSOFT Database Manager: Displays the software version information.

Table 10-1: CLARiSOFT Database Manager Tool Bar (Continued)

#### Managing the Sample Database

CLARiSOFT is supplied with a sample database, that contains common data fields used in the product coding and marking industry. The sample database can be edited as required.

#### Adding a new job to the sample database

In this example, we will add a new job containing the data below to the sample database.

Unique Job Code	D003UK		
Job Code1	Super Market		
Job Code2	Salmon Fillets		
Job Code3	500g		
Description	UK 500g Salmon Fillets		
SellByOffset	5 Days		
UseByOffset	10 Days		
CIFFReference	Inner Primary Example1.ciff		
Price	£5.10		
AuxCiffReference	Secondary Example1.ciff		

Table 10-2: New Job Data

*Note:* We are using the templates in the default directory of CLARiSOFT Inner *Primary Example1.ciff and Secondary Example1.ciff. Other templates may be created as .ciff files with the database entry linked with them.* 

1 Open the sample database from the default directory.

*Note:* To understand the structure of the CLARiSOFT Database, refer to "CLARiSOFT Database Structure" on page 7-2.

**2** The sample database contains all the fields we need. Click *Add New Record* in the tool bar.

**3** The *Add new record* dialog box appears. Enter the *UniqueJobCode* for the new job (D003UK in this example) and click *Create Job*. The other data fields will become editable.

Job Details		Your Items	,
*UniqueJobCode	D003UK	Weight	
CIFFReference	Inner Primary Example1.ciff	longdesc	E
	Browse	FactoryCode	
Tiered Job Codes		-	
JobCode1	Super Market		
JobCode2	Salmon Fillets		
JobCode3	500g		
Other Information		-	
Description	UK 500g Salmon Fillets		
SellByOffset UseByOffset Price	5          Offset Type           10          C         Months           E5.10           Years		
CaseQuantity	Data Valid		
PrimaryPackCode			
SecondaryCaseCode	•		
PackDescription			
*AuxCIFFReference	Secondary Example1.ciff		
	Browse		
Extra Ciff Reference :			
	Browse		
		1	

Figure 10-4: Add New Record

**4** Enter the data as shown in Figure 10-4.

*Note:* If the AuxCIFF reference is not in use, use data from the earlier CIFFReference Field for the CIFF file in use.

5 Click Save. The confirmation window appears (Figure 10-5).



Figure 10-5: Confirmation

- 6 Click *Close* to close the *Add New Record* dialog box.
- 7 The new record is added to the sample database.

📒 CLARiSOFT Da	tabase Manager						
<u>File Edit T</u> ool	s <u>H</u> elp						
🗅 🗳 🐜 🚿	▶* ▶⁄ ₩ 🗎	a 🖻   🟉   🚰	?				
UniqueJobCode	JobCode1	JobCode2	JobCode3	Description	SellByOffset	UseByOffset	CIFFReference
D001UK	Mega Market	Rice	250g	UK 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	longtext.ciff
D002UK	Mega Market	Rice	500g	UK 500g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary Example1.ciff
D003IRL	Mega Market	Rice	250g	IRL 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary Example1.ciff
D003UK	Super Market	Salmon Fillets	500g	UK 500g Salmo	005/00/00	010/00/00	Inner Primary Example1.ciff
D004IRL	Mega Market	Rice	500g	IRL 250g Rice	020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary Example1.ciff
FP0001	Carolyn	Flapjack	100g	Carolyn's Flapja	000/00/00	012/00/00	FlapjackPrimary.ciff
M001UK	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	500g	UK 500g Chick	009/00/00	010/00/00	Inner Primary Example2.ciff
M002UK	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	750g	UK 750g Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary Example2.ciff
M003IBL	Market Place	Chicken Tikka	500a	IBL 500a Chick	010/00/00	011/00/00	Inner Primary Example2.ciff

Figure 10-6: Updated Sample Database

#### **Editing the Database**

In this example, we will be making the following changes.

- Adding a new data field: 'Packed In'
- Not using the data field 'Description'.
- Adding the new data field 'Packed in' to the right of the column 'Job Code 3'.
- 1 Click on the row containing the job 'D003UK' we added in the previous example.

2 Click the *Set-up Data Field Properties* button in the toolbar. The *Options* dialog box appears.

Item Name	Length	Order	Enabled	Field Type		
UniqueJobLode	20		Yes	l ext		
	20	2	res	Text		
JobLode2	20	3	res	Text		
JobLodes Deservición	20	4	Tes	Text		
Description	30	0	Tes	1 ext		
SellByOffset	20	7	Tes	Officer		_
OseByUffset	20	0	Tes	Unset		
Dimension	200	0	Tes	T ext		
PrimaryFackCode	14	3	Tes	Currenter		
Frice	0	10	Tes	Lurrency		
AuxUIFFRerere	200	10	Tes	T ext		
SecondaryCase	14	12	Tes	EAN 14 Number		
DeekDeerintien	20	13	Vee	Tout		
FackDescription	30	14	Tes	Text		
-Settings for Select	ed Field					
Display Name:		Length	n:			
UniqueJobCode		20			I lse this fiel	d

Figure 10-7: Options

- **3** Click the *Add New Field* button.
- 4 In the *Add New Field* dialog box, enter the *Display Name* as 'Packed In'. Select the *Data Type* as *Text* and enter the *Length* as '20'.

Add New Field
Display Name : Packed In
Data Type Text
Length : 20
Apply Cancel

Figure 10-8: Add New Field

**5** Click *Apply*. The following confirmation window appears.



Figure 10-9: Confirmation

- 6 Click *OK*. The new data field appears in *Table Configuration* tab of the *Options* dialog box.
- 7 Select the field *Description*. Click on the check box *Use this field* to uncheck.

0	1	Yes	Text		
0	2				
	2	Yes	Text		
0	3	Yes	Text		
0	4	Yes	Text		
0	5	No	Text		
0	6	Yes	Offset		
0	7	Yes	Offset		
55	8	Yes	Text		
4	9	Yes	EAN8		
	10	Yes	Currency		
55	11	Yes	Text		
4	12	Yes	EAN14		
	13	Yes	Number		
0	14	Yes	Text		
	) ) ) 55 4 55 4 Field	0         4           0         5           0         7           35         8           4         9           55         11           4         12           13         13           0         14           13         14	1         4         Yes           0         5         No           1         6         Yes           35         8         Yes           4         9         Yes           55         11         Yes           4         12         Yes           13         Yes           0         14         Yes	J         4         Yes         Text           0         5         No         Text           0         6         Yes         Offset           0         7         Yes         Offset           35         8         Yes         Text           4         9         Yes         EAN8           10         Yes         Text           55         11         Yes         Text           4         12         Yes         EAN14           13         Yes         Number           0         14         Yes         Text	J         4         Yes         Text           0         5         No         Text           3         6         Yes         Offset           3         7         Yes         Offset           35         8         Yes         Text           4         9         Yes         EAN8           10         Yes         Fext           4         12         Yes         Fext           13         Yes         Number           0         14         Yes         Text

Figure 10-10: Hide the field

8 Click *Change Column Ordering* button. Displays the *Column Ordering Change* Dialog Box.

*Note:* Select Packed In and move up using the up arrow until it is placed below Job Code 3.

Column Ordering Change You may change the ordering of the columns below. This affects the way in which they are displayed on the main form.
ordering you select.
Apply Cancel

Figure 10-11: Column ordering

- **9** Click *Apply*.
- **10** Click *Close* to close the *Options* dialog box.
- 11 The *Packed In* data field is added next to the *Job Code3* data field. The *Description* data field is hidden.

CLARISOFT Da	tabase Manager						
<u>File Edit T</u> ool	s <u>H</u> elp						
🗅 🗳 🐜 🚿	▶* ▶/ 📈 🗎	8 6 6	?				
UniqueJobCode	JobCode1	JobCode2	JobCode3	Packed In	SellByOffset	UseByOffset	CIFFReference
D001UK	Mega Market	Rice	250g		020/00/00	025/00/00	longtext.ciff
D002UK	Mega Market	Rice	500g		020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E
D003IRL	Mega Market	Rice	250g		020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E
D003UK	Super Market	Salmon Fillets	500g		005/00/00	010/00/00	Inner Primary E
D004IRL	Mega Market	Rice	500g		020/00/00	025/00/00	Inner Primary E
FP0001	Carolyn	Flapjack	100g		000/00/00	012/00/00	FlapjackPrimary

Figure 10-12: Sample Database showing modified data fields

*Note:* To use the 'Description' data field again, click the 'Set-up Database Properties' button. Click on the 'Description' field and click on the check box 'Use this field'. A tick mark appears, indicating that this field is enabled.

*Note:* The data fields that we added during the worked example can be removed. 'Unique Job Code' and 'CIFF Reference' must always be enabled.

**12** Click the job *D003UK* and click the *Edit Record* button. The *Edit Current Record* dialog box appears.

ob Details		Your Items		
*UniqueJobCode	D003UK Create Job	Packed In	UK	_
CIFFReference	Inner Primary Example1.ciff	Weight		
	Browse	longdesc		Edi
iered Job Codes		FactoryCode		
JobCode1	Super Market			
JobCode2	Salmon Fillets			
JobCode3	500g			
ther Information				
	UK 500g Salmon Fillets	-		
Description	5 Clifset Type	-		
UseByOffset	10 C Months C Years			
Price	25.10			
CaseQuantity	0 Data Valid			
PrimaryPackCode	•			
SecondaryCaseCode	•			
PackDescription				
*AuxCIFFReference	Secondary Example1.ciff			
	Browse			
Extra Ciff Reference :		_		
	Browse	1		

Figure 10-13: Edit Current Record

- **13** Enter the text 'UK' in the *Packed In* box under *Your Items*.
- 14 Click Save Changes. The following confirmation window appears.



Figure 10-14: Confirmation Window

**15** Click *Close* to close the *Edit Current Record* dialog box. The new record is updated and displayed in the database.

### **Creating a Database**

The following four options can be used to create a database.

- **CLARiSOFT Database Wizard:** Guides the user through the steps required to build a new database.
- **Primary Coding Template:** A pre-defined database containing commonly used fields in primary product coding.
- **Primary and Secondary Coding Template:** A pre-defined database containing commonly used fields in primary and secondary product coding.
- Secondary Coding Template: A pre-defined database containing commonly used fields in secondary product coding.

#### **CLARiSOFT** Database Wizard

In this example, we will create a database, with four jobs, as shown below.

Product Description	Spring Water
Internal Product Code	3WF
'Use By' Offset	365 Days
'Sell By' Offset	300 Days
UPC-A Data	0083046000135
UPC-E data	None
Price	\$11.99

#### Product 1

Table 10-3: Product 1

#### Product 2

Product Description	Cola
Internal Product Code	RXD
'Use By' Offset	30 days
'Sell By' Offset	21 days
UPC-A Data	None
UPC-E data	04904403
Price	\$12.99

Table 10-4: Product 2

#### **Product 3**

This product is shipped to two different customers: Customer A and Customer B.

Product Description	Energy Drink
Internal Product Code	OGO (Customer A)
	DWG (Customer B)
'Use By' Offset	45 days
'Sell By' Offset	35 days
UPC-A Data	0501234567890
UPC-E data	01213405
Price	\$8.99

Table 10-5: Product 3

- 1 Open and login to the CLARiSOFT Database Manager.
- 2 Click *File > New* to create a new database. The following dialog box appears.

New Database	X
Select the required template or use the Wizard	
<u> </u>	-
Database Primary Coding Wizard Template	
2	
Primary & Secondary Second Coding Template	
OK Cancel	

Figure 10-15: New Database

- **3** Click *Database Wizard* and click *OK*.
- 4 A prompt will be raised to select a name for the database. Enter the name 'New Database' and click *Save*.

**5** The *Database Wizard* launches.



Figure 10-16: Database Wizard

- 6 Click the *Next* button or the *Start* link in option 1.
- 7 Click on the check boxes for both *Primary Packs* and *Secondary Packs* under *Use?* as shown below.

Claricom Database Configuration Wizard			
CLARICOM	What	are you coding	g?
	Types of Item	Use?	
Click on the Images or the check boxes to	Primary Packs	<b>N</b>	
select the type, or types of items you code	Secondary Packs		
	Other	E	

Figure 10-17: Database Wizard

8 Click *Next*. Commonly used fields will be presented in a table for review. Review Table 10-3 on page 10-11, Table 10-4 on page 10-11 and Table 10-5 on page 10-12 to identify the data requirements for this example. Select the data requirements as shown in Figure 10-18. Note that the data field 'Internal Product Code' is not present in the commonly used fields.



Figure 10-18: Database Wizard

**9** Click *Next*. The wizard prompts if 'Product Categories' (i.e. 'Product Tiers') is to be used.

Product Tiers allow subcategories to be created which aids the selection of the correct record in the database for the job. For this example, we will create three tiers: PRODUCT, CUSTOMER, NONE.

PRODUCT will allow the selection of any of the three products (Energy Drink, Cola or Spring Water).

CUSTOMER will allow the selection of either of the 2 customers for our 'ENERGY DRINK' product. Therefore the selection of 'ENERGY DRINK'/ 'OGO' will point to a distinct record in the database.

Energy Drink	Customer A	Unique Job Code 1	Ciff Reference 1	Auxiliary CIFF Reference 1
	Customer B	Unique Job Code 2	Ciff Reference 2	Auxiliary Ciff Reference 2

Table 10-6: Product tiers

**10** Click on the box Do you wish to use Product Categories?.

11 Enter the required product categories into each level. First PRODUCT, next CUSTOMER.

CLARICOM	Do you use Product Tier
We now need to consider how informati	on will be retrieved from the database.
How do you currently refer to the produc code, their point-of-sale barcode or do	:ts you make? Do you reference you products using a unique refer you categorize your products?
For example you may think of a product customer. If you do this we can set-up would like more information about how t	t in terms of being a given size of a particular product for a given the database to allow you to categorize your products. ( <u>Click Here</u> this feature works)
Do you wish to use product categories?	
Enter the title of your 1st (top) tier category e.g. Customer	Product
Enter the title of your 2nd tier category	Customer
(if required): e.g. Product Type	

Figure 10-19: Set Up Product Tier

**12** Click *Next*.

CLARICOM You can now change the nam	ies of the Standard Items :	suggested and/or add n	Add or Edit Items
Commonly Used Fields			
Item Name	Type of Information	Length	Edit Item Name
UniqueJobCode	Text	20	
CIFFReference	Text	255	
UseByOffset	Date Offset	20	
SellByOffset	Date Offset	20	
PrimaryPackCode	Primary EAN	13	
Description	Text	30	
Price	Currency	6	
SecondaryCaseCode	EAN/UCC14	14	
AuxCIFFReference	Text	255	
CIFFReference2	Text	255	
Your Added Fields			Add New Item
			Remove Item
Item Name	Type of	Length	Edition Name

Figure 10-20: Add / Edit Fields

**13** In this dialog box, existing field names selected above can be edited or new field names can be added. Click on *Add New Item* to enter the field 'Internal Product Code' as shown in Figure 10-21. Click *OK*.

*Note:* The following commonly used fields are not to be removed:

- UniqueJobCode
- *CiffReferenceAux*
- CIFFReference

CLARICOM	Add A New Item
Name	
Internal Product Code	OK
Data Type	
Text 🗸	Cancel
Length	
5	

Figure 10-21: Add New Item

**14** Click on the Item Name 'Primary Pack Code' and click *Edit Item Name*. Change the item name as 'UPC-A data'. Click *OK*.

CLARICOM	Edit Item Name
Name	
UPC-A Data	ОК
	Cancel

Figure 10-22: Edit Item Name

- **15** Click on the Item Name 'Secondary Pack Code' and click *Edit Item Name*. Change the item name as 'UPC-E data'. Click *OK*.
- **16** Click *Next*. The Database is now ready to be created.



Figure 10-23: Data Entry Complete

**17** Click *Create*. The database is successfully created. Click *Finish* to exit the wizard.



Figure 10-24: Finish Wizard

**18** The empty database will open and is now ready with the field names that were created. Click *Add New Record* to enter the details of the first record.

3 CLARISOFT Database Manager										
Eile Edit Iools Help										
D 😰 🕶 🚧 ▶ ↦ ⋈ ⋈ 🗈 🛍   🙋   🚮   😵										
UniqueJobCode	Product	Customer	None	Description	SellByOffset	UseByOffset	CIFFReference	PrimaryPackCode	Price	

Figure 10-25: Empty Database

**19** Enter the 'UniqueJobCode' as 001 and click *Create Job*. Enter the other details as shown below.

b Details				Your Items	
"UniqueJobCode	001	_	Create Job	Internal Product Code	3wF
CIFFReletence	SPRING WATER.c	ж	_		
			Browse		
ered Job Codes					
Customer					
None	[				
JobCode3					
her Information					
Description	SPRING WATER				
SelBuOlfaet	200	Offset Type			
LineBulliteret	300 .	C Months			
Price	300 .	C Years			
PackDascription	8 1.33				
LIPC & Data	0	Data Valid			
URCE Date	0083046000135				
0102000		-			
"AuxCIFFReference	sec 1.cill				
			Browse		
Extra Cill Reference :					
			Browse		

Figure 10-26: Add Record

**20** Add records for 'Product 2' and 'Product 3'. Note that 'Product 3' will have two unique job codes, one each for 'Customer A' and 'Customer B'. The database will now have four records as shown below.

CLARISOFT Database Manager										
Eile <u>E</u> dit <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp										
UniqueJobCode	Customer	Description	SellByOffset	UseByOffset	CIFFReference	UPC-A Data	Price	AuxCIFFRefere	UPC-E Data	Internal Product
001		SPRING WATER	300/00/00	365/00/00	SPRING WAT	0083046000135	\$11.99	sec 1.ciff		3WF
002		Cola	021/00/00	030/00/00	Cola.ciff		\$12.99	SEC 2.ciff	04904403	RXD
003	Customer A	Energy Drink	035/00/00	045/00/00	EnergyDrink Cu	0501234567890	\$8.99	sec3.ciff	01213405	0G0
004	Customer B	Energy Drink	000/00/00	000/00/00	EnergyDrink Cu	0501234567890	0	sec3.ciff	01213405	DWG

Figure 10-27: New Database

Refer to "Printing a Job Linked to a Database" on page 9-11 for more information on printing.